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Our values

Respect our patients and colleagues
Actively engage patients, carers and staff in decision-making at every level
Commitment to quality of care
Provide high quality, safe and effective care
Use resources effectively and efficiently to deliver excellent
patient experience
Be open and transparent about our performance
Compassion
Put patients, their families and carers at the heart of everything we do
Listen and respond to feedback from patients, GPs and other stakeholders
Improving lives
Deliver the right care in the right place at the right time
Encourage innovation in all that we do
Work together for patients
Work creatively with local partners to secure benefits for local people
Working together for patients
Work creatively with local partners to secure benefits for local people
Support our staff and ensure they have access to the education, training
and development opportunities they need to do their job well
Everyone counts
Be respectful of everyone’s views
Ensure we are open minded and willing to change and do things differently
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Chair’s foreword
We hope that you find the 2015/16 annual report a useful guide to
developments over the last year and to our priorities for the future.
This was our second full year as a new organisation; I am proud of the way in
which our staff have responded to the significant challenges of the year and
the way in which they work tirelessly to improve patient care.
Patient safety is, of course, our number one priority and we were pleased to
be one of the first Trusts to join the national “Sign up to Safety” campaign last
year. You can read on page 11 about important improvements we have made,
such as reducing falls and preventing patients from developing pressure
ulcers. 2016/17 will see us further developing services to be more responsive
to the needs of older patients – where early treatment can aid recovery and
reduce the need for hospital care.
We have continued to celebrate success and I was delighted by the response
to our staff awards last year. We had nominations for over 500 members of
staff who had gone above and beyond the call of duty, making the judging
process extremely difficult. The awards highlighted the large number of staff
who exemplify the values of our Trust (see inside front cover); you can find out
more on page 30.
With so much media coverage on the pressures faced by the NHS, it was
wonderful to see our choir making headlines over Christmas last year for all
the right reasons – as they gained the number 1 spot with their charity single,
“A Bridge Over You”. As well as raising money for worthy causes, the song and
accompanying video celebrates all the heroes in the NHS whose work makes
a difference to others on a daily basis. I am proud of our choir – not just for
their achievement over the Christmas, but for their role in supporting staff and
patients throughout the year as a whole. The choir is a true reflection of what
makes our Trust – and indeed the wider NHS – so special.
We have continued to expand our engagement programme over 2015/16 and
we hope that readers will participate in surveys and events over the next year.
It is important that we hear from you as we continue to strive to serve our
local communities as effectively as possible.
Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to pay tribute to the enormous
contribution to the Trust – and to the wider healthcare sector – made
by Professor Gabrielle Kingsley, Trust Medical Director and Consultant
Rheumatologist, who sadly died in January 2016. I am proud to have had
the opportunity to work with Gay; she worked tirelessly to ensure patients
received the best care and played a pivotal role in developing the strategic
direction of the Trust. She was widely recognised for her outstanding
contribution to research and played an important role in developing the next
generation of doctors.
During her illness, Gay took great satisfaction in having elected to have
her treatment at Lewisham Hospital; commenting on the high quality
compassionate care she received, in the hospital that she regarded as her
local. The legacy of her work will continue but she will be sorely missed.

Elizabeth Butler, Chair
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Chief Executive’s foreword
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust has continued to make steady progress
over 2015/16, as we work towards our goal of becoming a consistently high
performing and financially sustainable organisation.
I am pleased to report that we have completed work on the Trust’s quality
improvement plan which was developed following the formation of the
organisation and the subsequent Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspections
in February 2014. The plan included over 140 actions to address the issues
raised by the CQC; you can read more on page 10.
The opening of our new Birth Centre at Greenwich in May 2015 was one of the
highlights of last year, and the centre has received extremely positive feedback
from local families since it became operational. Indeed, our maternity team’s
hard work in meeting the needs of local people was recognised by the Royal
College of Midwives (RCM) – who chose Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust
as “Midwifery Team of the Year” in their annual awards. The judges were
particularly impressed with the way our midwifery team work with local
parents and take on board patient feedback to improve services.
Since the Trust was formed in October 2013, we have been running a
recruitment and retention campaign to increase the number of permanent
staff. This has increased staffing levels by seven per cent and I am pleased
to report that over 2015/16 we consistently met the target for providing safe
numbers of nursing staff on our wards. In 2016/17, we will continue to work
to reduce the need for more expensive agency staff in areas where there is a
national shortage of staff.
We are working with other providers to improve how we share important
information about patient care through the launch of Connect Care, our new
IT system (see page 13 for more information). Over 2016/17, we will continue to
roll out Connect Care with our partners.
The financial challenges facing the NHS are well publicised and like most
Trusts, we delivered a deficit in 2015/16. We intend to deliver a reduced deficit
in 2016/17 and return to financial balance by 2020. Our aim is to work closely
with patients, staff, partners and local people to improve the quality and
efficiency of the organisation and our services.

Tim Higginson, Chief Executive
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3.		 About us
Our services and background

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust was established on
1 October 2013. The Trust is responsible for:
Queen Elizabeth Hospital in Woolwich
University Hospital Lewisham
A range of community services in Lewisham
Some services at Queen Mary’s Hospital in Sidcup.
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust provides a comprehensive
range of high quality acute healthcare services to more
than 526,000 people living across the London Boroughs of
Lewisham, Greenwich and Bexley. Our community services are
used primarily, but not exclusively, by those living in Lewisham.
Queen Elizabeth Hospital serves the populations of
Greenwich, Bexley and other neighbouring boroughs. The
hospital provides a wide range of inpatient and outpatient
services, as well as emergency and planned care. University
Hospital Lewisham provides elective and emergency
healthcare to residents of Lewisham and other local
boroughs, including Greenwich, Bexley and Bromley.

Academic activities and research

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust has an established
partnership with King’s Health Partners (KHP), the
Academic Health Science Centre for South East London.
The Trust works closely with KHP to deliver local clinical
services, research, education and training activities.
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust is part of the London
(South) Comprehensive Local Research Network and the
South London Academic Health Science Network. The Trust
plays a part in many clinical networks across South East
London, predominantly for specialist services including
cancer, cardiac, stroke, maternity and neonatal services.
Our participation in these networks gives local people
access to specialist and local care.

The Trust is a centre for the education and training of
medical students enrolled with King’s College London’s
GKT School of Medical Education.
In Lewisham, our health professionals also provide
care to adults and children in a range of health centres,
community clinics, and in patients’ own homes. Adult
services include community matrons, district nurses, the
diabetes team, the home enteral nutrition team and our
sexual and reproductive health team. Services for children
and young people include health visiting, occupational
therapy, physiotherapy and speech and language services.
In Greenwich, community services are provided by Oxleas
NHS Foundation Trust (www.oxleas.nhs.uk).

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust provides a
comprehensive range of high quality acute healthcare
services to more than 526,000 people living across the
London Boroughs of Lewisham, Greenwich and Bexley.
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4. Performance
Performance against key targets

The Trust’s performance is measured against a number
of national and local targets. Information on how we did
in 2015/16 is below and in the table overleaf. Up-to-date
performance data is available on our website:
www.lewishamandgreenwich.nhs.uk/performance.

Emergency Department four hour wait
The national standard is to ensure that 95 per cent of
patients are treated within four hours of entering our
emergency departments. This has been a challenge for
the Trust and the pressures on emergency departments
throughout the country have been well documented.

Since the Trust was formed, we have introduced a range
of initiatives to improve our emergency services. These
include hourly “ward rounds” – with senior consultants
assessing patients every hour so we can ensure we
are responsive to people’s needs and provide timely
discharges when possible. We also run a daily bed meeting
with our partners – looking at providing early discharges
when patients can be treated outside hospital.
Our performance against the four hour waiting target
improved in 2015/16 compared to the previous year.
However, the Trust is not meeting the target consistently
and we are continuing to work with partners to make
further improvements. This includes reviewing the
process to manage the transfer of care across different
organisations – so we can minimise delays and ensure
patients get the right treatment in the right place at the
right time. We are also increasing the level of support for
older patients and will be expanding outpatient services
to provide more early treatment which aids recovery and
reduces the need for hospital admissions.

Infection control

We were set a target of having no Trust assigned MRSA
bacteraemia cases in 2015/16. The Trust reported two
cases of MRSA bacteraemia – both at University Hospital
Lewisham. These were all reported as clinical incidents
and investigated thoroughly.
The first case of MRSA bacteraemia was thought to have
originated from a contaminated blood sample. Following
an investigation, we have carried out additional training for
staff who take blood samples and for staff on the ward.
In the second case of MRSA it was impossible to identify
the cause of the infection. However, we identified areas for
improving practice. As a result, we have:
Re-educated the staff on the ward about the
		 importance of documenting that we have inserted and
		 then cared for a device such as a feeding tube properly.
Made changes to ensure prompt prescribing of MRSA
		 treatment to reduce the amount of MRSA on the skin
		 and in the nose.
Made sure that the staff on the ward attend an annual
		 refresher training on aseptic technique.
Over 2015/16 we reported 37 cases of C. Difficile against a
target of no more than 44. Although we have not breached
our target, we continue to investigate each Trust assigned
case of C. Difficile so that we can take appropriate action.

Cancer targets

Our performance against key national standards for
cancer in 2015/16 is summarised below.
Two week waiting standard
Ninety three per cent of patients should wait no more
than two weeks to be seen following an urgent referral for
cancer. The standard is measured separately for patients
with symptoms of breast cancer.
We met these targets in most months over 2015/16 and
have taken a range of steps to improve performance
further. One of our biggest challenges has been the
number of patients who reschedule urgent hospital
appointments. As a result, we have worked with GPs and
partners to improve patient information – introducing
new patient leaflets that explain the importance of
attending hospital appointments for swift diagnosis for
suspected cancer. We have also improved processes
and recruited more people to the administration team
responsible for patient bookings on the two week pathway.
Over 2016/17, our goal is to meet the two week waiting
standards consistently.
31 day standard
All patients who need a subsequent treatment for cancer
should receive treatment within 31 days of the decision
to treat. The Trust met this target in most months over
2015/16. Our goal is to meet it consistently over 2016/17
following a range of improvements introduced over the
last year. These are described in the section below, under
“62 day standard”.
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62 day standard
The standard is that 92 per cent of patients should wait no
longer than 62 days for treatment from referral.
This is a key standard and over 2015/16 we carried out
a detailed analysis into why the Trust was not meeting
it consistently. Reasons included the increased number
of patients needing treatment, as well as the volume
of complex diagnoses which can take time to confirm.
A key issue was also that some of our patients were
experiencing delays in their care when they needed
treatment from other specialist centres.
As a result the Trust has made significant improvements
to improve performance and ensure more people receive
timely treatment. These include:
Improving how we review each patient on the cancer
		 pathway so that early action can be taken to
		 prevent delays.
Providing earlier diagnosis where possible. This
		 includes providing more CT and MRI scans before
		 patients are seen for their first outpatient
		 appointments – so our healthcare professionals
		 already have access to their results.
Ensuring earlier referral to other providers where
		 people need specialist treatment elsewhere.
As a result of our new measures, we met the 62 day target
for the first time in a long period in January 2016. We did
not meet the target in February as all NHS Trusts in South
East London focused on clearing the backlog of patients
who had waited longer than 62 days for treatment during
this month. We met the target again in March 2016 and aim
to meet it consistently over 2016/17, thanks to all the work
over the last year.

Safer staffing

The safer staffing target looks at the number of nursing
and midwifery staff needed to deliver high quality patient
care. We met the target consistently over 2015/16 and have
been continuing our recruitment and retention campaign.

Referral to treatment targets

The NHS standard is that 92 per cent of patients should be
treated either as an inpatient or as a day case within 18
weeks of referral. This target was consistently achieved in
2015/16 with performance above the 92 per cent standard
in the ten months that performance was reported.
There were two months (June and July 2015) where
performance data was not reported, with the agreement
of the Trust’s commissioners and the Trust Development
Authority (now NHS Improvement). This was following
the launch of our new electronic patient record system
at University Hospital Lewisham (known as iCareUHL), as
time was needed to get the new IT system embedded and
to ensure the reports it produced were correct. However,
during this period the waiting list was closely managed to
ensure the standard was met. Plans are being developed
to ensure continued delivery of the standard in 2016/17.
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VTE

The national standard is that 95 per cent of patients are
screened on admission for Venous Thromboembolism,
more commonly known as VTE. This is the collective term
for deep vein thrombosis (DVT) and pulmonary embolism
(PE) – a significant cause of death, long-term disability
and chronic ill-health problems.
Historically, reporting on the Trust’s performance in this
area has relied upon staff manually checking the patient
notes to confirm the assessment has been completed.
The Trust reported compliance with this standard during
2014/15 but has not been able to do so in 2015/16. This
was because we had reduced staff capacity during the
first few months of the year to check each patient’s record
coupled with problems recording this data on iCare - our
new electronic patient record system. However the Trust is
satisfied that the VTE assessments are being completed as
this is evidenced in the patients’ notes.
All individual patient VTE assessments are now being
recorded on electronic patient records. It is expected that
we will achieve the 95 per cent standard during 2016/17.

Childhood obesity

Measuring a child’s height and weight is part of the
Government’s strategy to tackle obesity and this initiative is
led by the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP).
The first set of measurements are taken from children aged
4 to 5 in reception class and the second in year 6 (aged 10
to 11 years) to assess the percentage of children who are
overweight or obese within primary schools.
The Trust’s community services in Lewisham met all the
targets for measuring children so that early action can be
taken to detect and treat obesity. This is not our target in
Greenwich as the Trust only directly provides community
services in Lewisham.

The Trust has made
significant improvements
to our cancer treatment
performance to ensure
more people receive
timely treatment.
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Breastfeeding

The health benefits of breastfeeding are well documented
and the Department of Health recommends breastfeeding
for at least a year, as it continues to provide both
significant nutrition and protection from illnesses.
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust gained level 2 UNICEF
Baby Friendly accreditation across the organisation in
2015. The Baby Friendly standards aim to improve the
information, support and encouragement provided in
order to promote, protect and support breastfeeding and
appropriate introduction to solid foods. This means that
all our midwives, health visitors and other health and
children’s centre professionals have Baby Friendly training
in supporting breastfeeding effectively.

Financial performance

Like most Trusts, we delivered a deficit in 2015/16. At the
start of the year, we planned to end 2015/16 with a deficit
of £36.7m and we achieved this target. After allowing for
technical adjustments agreed with the Department of
Health, the deficit figure was £22.86m.
Because of the scale of the financial challenges in the
NHS, we are not planning to return to financial balance
until 2020. We are planning to deliver a reduced deficit of
£20.2m in 2016/17. Our aim is to work closely with patients,
staff, partners and local people to improve the quality and
efficiency of the organisation and our services.

Our community team in Lewisham have met all targets for
ensuring that the majority of infants are fully or partially
breastfed at 6 – 8 weeks. Again, this is not our target in
Greenwich as the Trust only directly provides community
services in Lewisham.

Mortality data

Our mortality data indicates that we provide a good level
of care.
We review data on the mortality of our patients so we
can see if services are safe and take action to improve
where necessary. The Summary Hospital-level Mortality
Indicator (SHMI) is a mortality measure that takes account
of a number of factors. It includes patients who have died
while having treatment in hospital or within 30 days of
being discharged. The SHMI score is measured against the
NHS average – which is 100. A score below 100 denotes a
lower than average mortality rate and therefore indicates
good, safe care.
To help understand the SHMI data, Trusts are categorised
into one of three bands:
Where Trust’s SHMI is ‘higher than expected’ – Band 1
Where the Trust’s SHMI is ‘as expected’ – Band 2
Where the Trust’s SHMI is ‘lower than expected’ – Band 3
Over 2014/15, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust score
was “as expected” (band 2) in the SHMI.
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Apr-15

May-15

Jun-15

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sep-15

Oct-15

Nov-15

Dec-15

Jan-16

Feb-16

Mar-16

Performance against key targets

91.3%

95.7%

93.9%

92.0%

91.5%

90.0%

91.4%

89.7%

91.6%

86.6%

83.7%

82.4%

Infection control: The Trust should
have no cases of MRSA bacteraemia.

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

Infection control: The Trust should
have no more than 39 cases of
Clostridium difficile. In total, there
were 37 cases over the year.

4

4

3

7

5

2

5

3

0

2

2

0

Cancer: Patients should wait no
more than two weeks for an urgent
referral. The standard is 93%.

93.3%

94.7%

93.0%

93.0%

91.4%

91.1%

89.2%

93.8%

95.7%

92.5%

93.4%

94.0%

Cancer: Patients with symptoms
of breast cancer should wait no
more than two weeks for treatment
following an urgent referral. The
standard is 93%.

95.3%

89.1%

92.7%

93.2%

95.0%

95.2%

98.5%

82.9%

89.5%

93.6%

91.6%

90.1%

Cancer: Patients should not wait
more than 31 days from confirmed
diagnosis to treatment. The standard
is 96%.

100%

100%

100%

100%

98.7%

98.8%

97.5%

98.6%

98.8%

93.2%

98.8%

100%

Cancer: Patients should not wait
more than two months for treatment
from GP referral. The standard is 85%.

78.9%

80.9%

80.6%

84.6%

76.2%

76.6%

73.7%

75.2%

84.5%

86.9%

79.2%

86.1%

18 weeks target: patients who have
not been treated yet should not
have waited longer than 18 weeks.
The standard is 92%.

92.8%

92.7% recorded recorded 93.4%

Not

Not

93.5%

92.5%

92.4%

92.6%

92.3%

92.3%

92.1%

Safer staffing: we should be meeting
90% of staffing requirements.

98.5%

97.4%

97.0%

96.9%

96.9%

97.1%

96.7%

96.9%

96.5%

96.0%

96.7%

96.3%

VTE: 95% of inpatients should
receive a VTE assessment.

94.2%

93.9%

88.9%

89.8%

90.9%

91.1%

80.9%

81.7%

81.1%

89.9%

92.7%

93.0%

National Target
Emergency cases: 95% of all
patients attending A&E should be
treated, admitted or discharged
within a maximum of four hours.

Breastfeeding: ensure the feeding
status of 95% of infants is checked
within 6-8 weeks after birth.

98.6%

98.8%

98.8%

98.3%

Breastfeeding: ensure that 72.5% of
infants are fully or partially breast
fed at 6-8 week check.

75.7%

76.5%

79.5%

74.6%

Childhood obesity: Ensure that
87% of children in Reception
are measured as part of the
Government’s National Childhood
Measurement Programme.

Annual figure of 94.2% (academic year 2014/15)

Childhood obesity: Ensure that 87%
of children in Year 6 are measured.

Annual figure of 92.3% (academic year 2014/15)

Standardised Hospital Mortality
Indicator (SHMI)
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100
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5. Patient safety
and quality
improvement
Addressing issues raised by the CQC

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust has not had a Trustwide inspection by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
since receiving a rating of “Requires Improvement”
following the February 2014 inspection. We agreed a
quality improvement plan with over 140 actions to address
the issues raised by the CQC. Actions included:
Making improvements to the emergency department
at QEH to address safety issues.
Introducing new ways to improve hand hygiene
compliance, such as new hand hygiene foam or gel
dispensers in public areas around our hospitals.
Improving how we share information from incidents
and complaints.
Ensuring audits are carried out on all our
		 medical equipment.
Introducing more robust processes for dealing with
medical waste.

Sign up to Safety

In July 2014 we joined the national “Sign Up To Safety”
initiative in which NHS trusts were invited to commit to
the ambition of reducing avoidable harm and the costs
of harm by one half. It is estimated that this initiative
will save 6,000 lives nationally over the next three years.
Through the campaign, we agreed to five key pledges:
Put safety first. Commit to reducing avoidable harm
in the NHS by half and make the goals and plans
developed locally public.
Continually learn. Make the organisation more
resilient to risks, by acting on feedback from patients
and by constantly measuring and monitoring how
safe our services are.
Honesty. Be transparent with people about our
progress to tackle patient safety issues and support
staff to be candid with patients and their families if
something goes wrong.
Collaborate. Take a leading role in supporting
		 local collaborative learning, so that improvements
are made across all of the local services which
patients use.
Support. Help people understand why things go
wrong and how to put them right. Give staff the time
and support to improve and celebrate progress.

Over 2015/16, progress against the plan was monitored by
the Trust Board, as well as by:
The Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) for
Lewisham, Greenwich and Bexley.
The Trust Development Authority (now NHS
Improvement), which regulates Lewisham and
Greenwich NHS Trust.
We completed the actions in our improvement plan by
July 2015, recognising the need for ongoing focus in three
key areas:
Addressing infrastructure problems on the Queen
Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) site, where more work
is required to address historic engineering and
maintenance issues. We have submitted plans for
extra funding to address these issues.
Continuing to improve emergency care at QEH and
University Hospital Lewisham (UHL). More information
on this is on page 15.
Increasing the capacity of our endoscopy services to
meet the increase in the local population and the
additional demand created by the expanded National
Bowel Cancer Scoping and Screening service.
		 See page 18 for more information.
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We developed a “Sign Up To Safety Improvement Plan” which was introduced in January 2015. The table below shows
progress against our key pledges over the first year of the plan.
Sign up to Safety Campaign progress report
Goal

Progress

Improve hand hygiene compliance with staff.

We promoted hand hygiene through our staff training
programme and ran a high profile “clean your hands”
campaign.
We assess progress by carrying out regular audits,
with staff in each clinical area monitoring whether
colleagues are cleaning their hands correctly. These
audits showed that hand hygiene compliance has
improved from 91 per cent over 2014/15 to 94 per cent
over 2015/16.

Identify when the health of a patient starts to get
worse suddenly through blood poisoning or infection
(sepsis), so early action can be taken.

We have improved our processes with a new
observation scoring chart across the Trust – so that
staff monitor patients’ conditions in line with best
practice guidelines and can take early action when
needed. We have also appointed staff sepsis leads in
key clinical areas.

Improve the safety of maternity services.

Maternity staff have had additional training on fetal
heart monitoring to ensure early action is taken
when we detect risks to babies’ health. We have
also recruited four new in-house fetal monitoring
champions. Over 2015/16, we will be introducing new
equipment to improve performance in this area further.

Protect patients from developing pressure sores.

We have introduced an enhanced staff training
programme to meet best practice and ensure
patients at risk of developing pressure sores are
regularly monitored.

Improve medication safety.

No patients suffered severe harm from medication
incidents in 2015/16.

To reduce the incidence of harm sustained from
patient falls.

Over 2015/16, the number of serious injuries caused
by falls has decreased and there have been no deaths
from falls.

We will continue to focus on the Sign up to Safety
programme in 2016/17 and report progress to our Board.
Other priorities for 2016/17 include:
Improving our services for older patients. This
includes making improvements for people with
dementia, as well as for their families and carers.
Improving services for people at the end of their lives.
Improving patient experience, ensuring we are
responsive to complaints and make changes
		 where necessary.
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6. Improving patient
			 experience
Meeting the needs and expectations of
patients and stakeholders

We work with local people and patient groups to gain a
better understanding of their needs and expectations,
so we can take action when they are not being met. Over
2015/16, we carried out a series of engagement events and
surveys to gain feedback from key groups.
Following this, we identified a need to extend visiting
times across the Trust, and have introduced a policy of
open visiting at all times for a family member or carer of a
patient. Open visiting was in place for most of our services
and we are pleased to make it consistent across the Trust
to benefit all patients.

John’s Campaign: improving services for
dementia patients

In 2015, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust was one of the
first NHS Trusts to sign up to “John’s Campaign”, a national
initiative about giving relatives and carers of those living
with dementia the right to stay with them in hospital.
Claire Champion, Director of Nursing and Clinical Quality,
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust said: “It is vital that
our patients feel safe and at ease during their time with
us, and this is particularly important for patients with
dementia. People with dementia present a different
challenge for our staff as they are often confused and
frightened. Carers play a significant role in the life of a
dementia sufferer: they offer that additional support, are
able to reassure a patient and explain, and repeat as
necessary, important information.”
Carers of patients with dementia are already supported to
stay 24/7 in wards where appropriate. Since signing up to
John’s Campaign the Trust has been looking at other ways
of supporting people with dementia, including introducing
a carers’ charter to ensure that carers are given the same
visiting rights as relatives. We will launch this in 2016.

PALS and complaints

The Trust runs a Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
to assist patients and their carers. Help from PALS’ staff
can include providing relevant information, liaising with
healthcare staff to sort out problems or providing help in
making a complaint.
During 2015/16 we received 1,250 complaints, compared to
1,164 complaints in the previous year.

Complaint themes over 2015/16

The main themes for complaints we received were around
medical and surgical treatment, communication and
information to patients, the attitude of staff, nursing care
and delays to outpatient appointments.
We have made a range of improvements following
complaints, such as:
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Improving patient information in Lewisham’s Early
Pregnancy Assessment Unit, introducing new
patient leaflets.
Displaying consultants’ contact details on the wards
for patients.
Introducing an ongoing training and awareness
programme for all clinical staff with regard to
communication, covering the need for open and
documented conversations with families and
acknowledging the importance of listening and
taking into account the carer’s perspective.
2015
16
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7. Working with
partners
Enhancing how we work with
other providers

In the past, health and social care workers from different
organisations in Lewisham and Greenwich have not had a
system in place to share important information about the
care of local people automatically. This means that GPs,
hospital staff, district nurses and social workers have not
always had immediate access to all the information they
need to provide the most timely and efficient care.
To address this problem, we have launched a new system
of local electronic records, called Connect Care. Connect
Care is a system which allows existing information to
be securely viewed quickly and safely by staff directly
involved in someone’s care.
In future, if you go to the emergency department, the
staff who treat you will no longer have to spend time
contacting other organisations (such as GPs) to obtain
relevant information about you, but will be able to view
this information through the Connect Care system. This
will enable them to make more informed decisions about
your care and treatment in an emergency situation.
Connect Care is now being used by GPs in Lewisham and
Greenwich as well as Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust.
Other providers are due to start using the system over
2016/17. For more information, please visit
www.lewishamandgreenwich.nhs.uk/connectcare.

Award winning service for
medicines management

Over 2015/16, we won two prestigious awards for
our innovative service to help patients manage their
medicines more effectively. The Lewisham Integrated
Medicines Optimisation Service (or LIMOS for short) is run
by Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust and was developed
in partnership with our commissioners, Lewisham Clinical
Commissioning Group.
Under LIMOS, individual pharmaceutical care plans
are developed and agreed with each patient and the
professionals involved in their care. This is backed up
by regular follow up by phone or visits to the patients’
homes, to ensure that medicines continue to meet the
patient’s needs. As well as ensuring people are on the
right medication, the service ensures that people take
their medication correctly and reduces waste.
The LIMOS service was recognised in the 2015 Patient
Safety Awards and the 2015 Health Service Journal Value in
Healthcare Awards.
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Improving links with our partners
in Lewisham

We are working closely with our health and care
partners in Lewisham to transform the health and
care system for local people. This work is overseen by
the Health and Care Partners Executive Board which
includes representatives from across the health and
care system.
Martin Wilkinson, Chief Officer of NHS Lewisham Clinical
Commissioning Group, said: “We think there is a real
opportunity for health and care organisations to work
closer together to improve the health and wellbeing
of local people. We are currently planning ways of
enabling people to live healthier lives, maintain their
independence and have access to more effective, better
quality, more affordable services.”

Lewisham devolution pilot

Lewisham was accepted as a pilot for exploring the
devolution of power in London. The pilot aims to focus
on integrating health, mental health and social care. This
links closely with the work overseen by the Health and
Care Partners Executive Board (see above).

Working with partners to improve
health and wellbeing

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust works with partners
through the Health and Wellbeing Boards to improve the
health and wellbeing of local people.
The London Borough of Lewisham and the Royal Borough
of Greenwich continue to face significant challenges in
relation to health of local residents, linked to high levels
of deprivation amongst significant proportions of the
population. In addition, both boroughs have expanding
populations, leading to greater numbers of people
requiring NHS services year-on-year.
As a result, we are focusing on initiatives to improve health
and wellbeing and prevent the need for hospital services.
This includes increasing public information on obesity
and promoting stop smoking services. We run the stop
smoking services in Lewisham, where we are responsible for
community services. You can read more on page 18.

Over 2015/16, we won two
prestigious awards for our
innovative service to help
patients manage their
medicines more effectively.
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8. Objectives
			 for 2016/17
Our vision is to be a consistently high performing and
financially sustainable Trust by 2020. Our corporate
objectives for 2016/17 set out how we are working to
deliver this ambition.
1. Make improvements in quality and safety so we are
one of the best performing Trusts in the country. This
will include:
Improving performance for cancer patients so we meet
the NHS standards for providing timely treatment.
Working with partners to ensure everyone who needs
emergency care gets treatment in a timely manner
across the health and social care system.
Maintaining our performance in meeting the 18-week
referral-to-treatment standard.
Putting into place the national recommendations
for improving maternity services across the country
(published in the National Maternity Review,
published February 2016).
2. Improve patient experience and offer greater choice
and personalisation.
3. Improve staff experience to support attraction and
retention, and reduction in use of agency staff.
4. Deliver the Trust’s financial target for 2016/17 as we
move towards a balanced budget position by 2020. Our
goal is to become one of the best performing Trusts in
the county for efficiency and managing our resources.
5. Ensure our workforce is resourced and deployed
effectively so we also meet the needs of patients at
evenings and weekends.
6. Make the best use of technology to benefit patients
and staff across the health system.
7. Work with partners to get the best usage of local NHS
estate. Our priority is making improvements to the
estate at QEH to ensure it is safe and fit for purpose.
8. Work with our partners to develop a shared vision and
plan for the future of sustainable local health services
to meet the needs of local people.

Key risks to the Trust achieving
our objectives

The national shortage in some roles, such as qualified
nurses, means there is a risk that we will not be able
to meet our staffing requirements. This could have
implications for our ability to improve performance. It
would also affect the Trust’s financial position due to the
cap which has been imposed on NHS Trusts around agency
spend. In 2016/17, expenditure on agency staff must not
total more than 10% of total spend on qualified nursing
and midwifery staff.
There is a further financial risk for the Trust associated with
the additional funding we have been awarded through the
NHS Sustainability Fund. For 2016/17, we have been awarded
£16.6m of income; however, this is dependent on the Trust
meeting a range of conditions, including:
Meeting our financial target of delivering a deficit of
£20.2m in 2016/17.
Not overspending on agency staff.
Meeting key targets.
To manage these risks, we will continue our recruitment
drive, which has reduced our spending on agency staff
by 20% since the start of 2015/16. We will also look for
additional opportunities to address any staff shortages.

14

2015
16

Annual
Report

9. Acute and
			 emergency services
New older people’s assessment and
liaison services

Over 2016/17, the Trust is setting up specialist teams to
support older people who come through the emergency
departments at University Hospital Lewisham (UHL) and
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH). The teams will include
older people’s consultants and physiotherapists.
Lucy Carter, Head of Therapies for the Trust, said: “Older
patients often have a range of health conditions, and
research shows that once people have been admitted to
a hospital bed their health often deteriorates. So we will
be working to provide early, specialist support so people
don’t have to be in hospital unnecessarily. When people
do need to be admitted to hospital, our focus will be on
promoting recovery.”

Providing more timely care for
emergency patients

With pressures on emergency departments throughout the
country, one of our priorities is providing more timely care
for patients requiring emergency treatment. A key area of
focus has been working with partners to ensure that patients
are transferred to the right service in a timely manner.
Research shows that providing what is known as
“ambulatory care” can encourage independence, aid
recovery and free up hospital beds. Ambulatory care is
provided on an outpatient basis, and includes diagnosis,
observation, consultation, treatment, intervention and
rehabilitation services. For example, patients may receive
blood transfusions or certain treatments for pain, such
as epidural injections, in an ambulatory care setting –
preventing the need for hospital admission.

developing a new “sensory room” on the older people’s
ward at University Hospital Lewisham. Ginnie Adamson,
dementia nurse, commented: “The sensory room is quite
unlike your standard hospital environment: it displays
moons and stars and has ambient lighting, while relaxing
music is played. Research shows that this can really help
people with dementia by reducing stress and anxiety.”

Adult community nursing service
improvements

Over 2015/16, we implemented an improvement plan for
adult community nursing services, which we provide in
Lewisham. Developments include strengthening the team
structure by appointing more senior nurses to provide
leadership and manage staff.
Beth Williams, Head of Nursing for Adult Community
Services in Lewisham, explained: “In the past, we had
smaller, more fragmented teams across the borough which
could cause problems – for example if staff had to take
sick leave, it was hard for smaller teams to cope. We are
now more resilient and are receiving good feedback from
patients following the changes we’ve made”.

New pharmacy service in Lewisham

Boots opened an outpatient pharmacy at University
Hospital Lewisham in July 2015. We have received positive
patient feedback on the new service, which has enabled
us to cut waiting times for prescriptions. In addition,
working with Boots has enabled our highly-skilled NHS
pharmacists to focus on ward-based work, providing
additional clinical support for inpatients and other
healthcare professionals around medicine managements.

Over 2016/17, we will be developing our plans to expand
the Trust’s ambulatory care centre at Queen Elizabeth
Hospital (QEH) and to set up an ambulatory care centre at
University Hospital Lewisham (UHL).

Dementia services

The Trust is carrying out a range of initiatives to improve
services for people with dementia. This has included
providing additional training for staff to promote
understanding of the challenges faced by people with
dementia, so we take this into account when providing
care. Over 2016/17, we will be encouraging staff to
become “dementia friends” – promoting understanding
of dementia and encouraging staff to volunteer and help
people this condition.
We have also introduced “dementia clocks” on our wards,
which display the date and time much more clearly
than normal clocks – to help people with dementia to
keep track of the time. In addition, the Trust has been
Annual
Report
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10. Children and young
			 people’s services
Hospital @ Home – helping to reduce
inpatient stays for children in Lewisham
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust’s community
children’s services are leading the way with a new service
to help more children recover in their own homes, rather
than in hospital. The “Hospital @ Home” service is run
by specialist community nurses, who visit children at
home and provide treatment which traditionally was
only available in a hospital setting – such as delivering
antibiotics through a drip.

The new service is run by a team of highly skilled
specialist community nurses in Lewisham, where the Trust
is responsible for community services. The service was
launched in February 2016 and will be reviewed at the end
of an 18 month pilot.

Meeting the needs of vulnerable
children and young people in Lewisham
In January 2016 the Trust appointed a Specialist School
Nurse Practitioner for Vulnerable Children and Young
People in Lewisham. This is a new role responsible for
providing a variety of services for children who are home
schooled or outside the traditional education system and
so miss out on school nursing services. These include
health screening, support and advice, immunisations,
advice on drugs and alcohols, emotional health and wellbeing, sexual health and signposting to other services
where required.

Building links with the local community

positive feedback from the parents of babies being treated
in the unit.

More support for vulnerable families

In 2015, we launched a new programme to improve the
health and wellbeing of new families who have been
identified as vulnerable – for example because they are
affected by mental health problems.
Under this innovative programme, health visitors make
additional home visits to families’ homes before they give
birth and then for the first two years’ of the child’s life. In
addition, we provide group activities to reduce isolation
for mothers and reduce the risk of postnatal depression.
These could involve group sessions on parenting skills,
nutrition, health and safety of children at home.
The home visiting programme is based on a successful
initiative in Australia and is known as Maternal Early
Childhood Sustained Home Visiting (or “MESCH” for short).

Family Nurse Partnership (FNP)

Following three years of success for the Family Nurse
Partnership (FNP) in Lewisham, the programme was
launched in Greenwich in 2015/16.
The FNP provides ongoing, intensive support to young,
first-time mothers and their babies. Structured home visits
are delivered by highly trained nurses and start in early
pregnancy, continuing until the child’s second birthday.
The FNP works to improve outcomes for children from
the most vulnerable families by providing support with
immunisations, dental care, breastfeeding, accessing
mental health services, education and employment.
Mothers stay on the programme until their child is two
years of age, when they can receive continued help from
the Trust’s health visiting programme.

The Trust has built formal links with a local charity, the
Chartwell Cancer Trust, which carries out fundraising for
Tiger Ward, the children’s cancer ward at Queen Elizabeth
Hospital. The support from Chartwell Cancer Trust funds
additional initiatives that support normal NHS provision
and improve the patient experience.
Over 2015/16, the charity has raised money for new kitchen
facilities for Tiger Ward as well as providing presents for
children being treated. In addition, the charity is funding a
Healthcare Assistant over the next four years to give extra
support to nursing staff and families.

“My Neonatal Diary- keep in touch”

To help families capture precious moments that occur
whilst their baby is being cared for in the Neonatal Unit
at Queen Elizabeth Hospital, the Trust has introduced
“My Neonatal Diary – keep in touch”. This is a booklet
for parents to record their baby’s special moments,
including big events, first photos, wrist bands and other
memorabilia. The diary also has a sticker chart for
mothers to record ‘Kangaroo Cuddles’, which involve
parents cuddling up to premature infants each day for up
to two to three hours. The diary has received extremely
16
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11. Maternity services
Award winning midwifery service

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust’s midwifery team won
a series of awards in 2015/16, including the Royal College
of Midwives’ (RCM) Award for Midwifery Service of the Year.
This award recognises the way the Trust has developed
maternity services to meet the needs of local women,
showing team work and innovation.
Helen Knower, Head of Midwifery for Lewisham and
Greenwich NHS Trust, commented: “I am proud to have
such a hard working and dedicated team who receive
wonderful feedback from patients for going the extra mile.
As well as developing an extremely popular new birth
centre which opened at Queen Elizabeth Hospital last
August, the team has made a real effort to engage with
local families so services meet their needs.”
The midwifery team is committed to taking account of the
feedback of local women through a series of engagement
events and initiatives, including running regular pregnancy
evenings and expectant father seminars at both University
Hospital Lewisham and Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Local
people can also contact the Trust’s electronic midwife,
Edie, using Twitter or email, or they can “call the midwife”
through the Trust’s helpline: 020 8836 4491.

RCM Public Health Award

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust’s team also scooped
the Royal College of Midwives’ (RCM) 2015 Public Health
Award. This was for our “Active Mothers in Bexley” project
which was set up and led by midwife Sherrie Barnes.
It supports pregnant women to manage their weight
effectively during and after pregnancy by providing
exercise classes and support from a range of experts,
including physiotherapists and health visitors.

weight management are offered additional classes in
a local sports centre where midwives are on-hand for
advice, encouragement and support. They can get healthy
eating advice from a trained Slimming World Consultant
and support from physiotherapists and health visitors. In
addition, a yoga teacher provides support with relaxation,
and local women can access exercise equipment and
activities at the sports centre.

New birth centre

The Greenwich Birth Centre was officially opened in August
2015 by “Call the Midwife” star, Laura Main, (better known
as Sister Bernadette to BBC viewers). Situated on the
maternity unit at Queen Elizabeth Hospital, the centre
has four birthing rooms and five single en-suite postnatal
rooms for women who may need to stay the night after
giving birth. Natural birthing aids, including a luxury
birthing pool as well as stools, slings and birthing balls
are also provided in every birthing room.
Laura Main said: “On ‘Call the Midwife’ I am used to
midwifery settings from the 50s and 60s so I have been
blown away by the wonderful facilities of the Greenwich
Birth Centre today. It was fantastic to meet the midwives
and hear such lovely stories from mothers who have used
the centre.”
Dr Jacque Gerrard, Director of The Royal College of
Midwives, also attended the event and added: “The
Greenwich Birth Centre is an excellent facility which
complements existing maternity services at Queen
Elizabeth Hospital and in the community. It is wonderful
to hear the positive experiences from local women who
have already used the Birth Centre as they are offered real
choices and better opportunities for continuity of care.”

The scheme was developed to help people in areas with
higher than average levels of maternal obesity and low
rates of physical activity to make healthy choices.
Through the service, women who need support with
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12. Long term
			 conditions
Trust launches major new cancer
screening service

We launched a major new screening service to protect
against one of the most common forms of cancer at
University Hospital Lewisham in September 2015.
Over a phased period, people aged 55 and over who live
in Lewisham, Greenwich, Bexley and Bromley are being
invited to attend the hospital for bowel scope screening.
Dr John O’Donohue, Director of Endoscopy at Lewisham
and Greenwich NHS Trust, said: “The Trust was already a
bowel screening centre, so we are delighted to have been
chosen as a centre for bowel scope screening as well.
Bowel cancer is England’s third most common cancer and
the second biggest killer so looking for the presence of
polyps early and removing them is an important part of
stopping cancer developing.
“Many people find anything to do with their bowel
embarrassing and this makes them reluctant to have
screening. However it is very important and I would
urge everyone who is invited to attend to come for their
appointment as in the long run it could save their life.”

Increasing the capacity of
endoscopy services

We need to expand our endoscopy service to meet the
needs of our growing population and the additional
demand created by the expanded National Bowel Cancer
Scoping and Screening service.
In 2015/16, we expanded our endoscopy service at Queen
Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) by opening a third treatment
room, enabling us to see more patients. We have also
developed detailed plans and applied for additional
funding to increase our endoscopy and screening services
at University Hospital Lewisham (UHL) and QEH to meet
future demand. This will ensure that our services meet
clinical best practice guidelines. Please check our
website – www.lewishamandgreenwich.nhs.uk –
for the latest details.

New clinic providing specialist
drug treatment

We are developing a new clinic at Queen Elizabeth
Hospital for patients who require specialist drug treatment
to manage conditions like multiple sclerosis and various
inflammatory diseases.
The ‘Infusion Suite’ will open in 2016 and will provide a
comfortable environment for patients to receive specialist
medications under clinical supervision. Claire Miller,
Senior Matron, said: “We are always looking to improve
the patient experience and this will make a big difference.
It’s important that people who require very specialist
treatment receive it in the right environment.”

Lewisham Stop Smoking Service
Celebrates 15,000th quitter

Lewisham Stop Smoking service celebrated its 15,000th quitter
in February 2015, when Sera Rifat, 48, stopped her 40 a day
habit with the help of the Lewisham Stop Smoking Service.
Matt Seal, Highly Specialist Stop Smoking Advisor, said: “We
are proud to have helped so many people give up smoking
through one-to-one and group sessions. You are four times
more likely to give up smoking with help from the NHS than
through willpower alone, so I would urge Lewisham residents
interesting in quitting to visit www.smokefreelewisham.co.uk
or call 0800 0820 388 to find out more.”
To contact the Greenwich Stop Smoking Service you can
call 0800 587 5833 or text ‘QUIT’ to 60060 or you can email:
support@greenwichstopsmoking.org.uk

Radiology services at Eltham
Community Hospital

Over 2016 we will be delivering radiology services at
Eltham Community Hospital.
The Trust’s radiology service has been working closely
with Greenwich Clinical Commissioning Group to set up
this new service. Through their GPs, patients will be able
to benefit from a range of services including X-rays and
ultrasound examinations.

Extending hours to improve access

Over 2015, we piloted extended chemotherapy services
at Queen Elizabeth Hospital, offering clinics for patients
on Saturdays. In addition, the Trust piloted a seven day
a week diabetes service at University Hospital Lewisham,
including access to specialist assessments and treatments
by the Diabetes Specialist Nurses team.
Following positive feedback on both pilots, we are
planning to run extended services in 2016/17 will which
include Sunday clinics for chemotherapy services at
Queen Elizabeth Hospital.
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13. Surgery
Making the best use of our theatres

Since the summer of 2015 our surgery division has been
working on a major project to improve the efficiency of
how operating theatres are used at University Hospital
Lewisham and Queen Elizabeth Hospital to enhance
patient care. Work includes standardising how patient
appointments are booked and ensuring that patients are
reminded in advance of their appointments to reduce the
number of operations which are cancelled.
The Trust is also setting up a “one-stop-shop” preassessment procedure. Our aim is to reduce the number
of time patients have to visit the hospital where possible,
by carrying out pre-operation assessments when patients
are referred for surgery – rather than requiring people to
make an additional trip to the Trust.

Expanding urology services

We have set up a service for urology, the surgical
speciality covering the diagnosis and treatment of
disorders of the kidneys, ureters, bladder, prostate and
male reproductive organs. The service enables local
people to be treated closer to home. It is split between
University Hospital Lewisham (UHL) and Queen Elizabeth
Hospital (QEH) in Woolwich.
Outpatient, diagnostics (tests), day surgery and emergency
cases will be seen at QEH; patients undergoing elective
(planned) inpatient surgery will be seen at UHL.

We have set up a service
for urology, the surgical
speciality covering the
diagnosis and treatment
of disorders of the kidneys,
ureters, bladder, prostate and
male reproductive organs.
Keyhole surgery for lower GI cancer

Over 2015/16, the Trust has been increasing the use of
keyhole surgery for patients being treated for GastroIntestinal (GI) cancer – the group of cancers that affect
the digestive system. Mr Sorelli, Consultant, commented:
“Keyhole surgery (or ‘laparoscopic surgery’ to give its
full name) is less invasive than traditional open surgery.
Using keyhole surgery for treatment of lower GI cancer
reduces the amount of time that patients need to recover
in hospital afterwards. In the past, patients had to spend
around eight days in hospital after an operation; with
keyhole surgery it is closer to three or four days. Getting
people back on their feet sooner improves the patient
experience and frees up hospital beds.”

Critical Care Unit

Over 2015/16, we have recruited 12 new specialist nurses
to manage increasing demand at the Critical Care Unit
at Queen Elizabeth Hospital. The unit provides intensive
treatment and monitoring for people in critically ill or
unstable conditions and has seen a significant increase
in patients. By expanding our staff we have been able to
meet the increasing demand for services.

Trauma and orthopaedics

Over 2015/16, the Trust has expanded our specialist
orthopaedic team at Queen Elizabeth Hospital. Midhat
Siddiqui, Director of Surgery, said: “We have seen a
30% increase in the number of patients attending for
broken hips (known in medical terms as ‘fractured neck of
femur’). This is due to an ageing population. By expanding
our team, we have been able to treat more patients and
ensure people receive hip replacements within 36 hours of
coming through our emergency department – in line with
the national guidelines.”

Expanding weight loss surgery

The Trust’s weight loss surgery clinic at University Hospital
Lewisham has received positive patient feedback since it
was established in 2014/15. As a result, we are expanding
the service to benefit more local people. The Trust
provides gastric bypass, sleeve gastrectomy and gastric
banding surgery, along with other procedures.
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14. Nursing and
Clinical Quality
Infection prevention and control

The Infection Prevention and Control Team (IPCT) is
responsible for supporting the Trust with the observation,
monitoring, prevention and control of infection across
the Trust. A key area is hand hygiene, and over 2015/16
the team arranged additional training for staff and ran
a high profile “Clean Your Hands” campaign, including
staff roadshows. As a result, our audits showed that staff
hand hygiene compliance improved from 91 per cent over
2014/15 to 94 per cent during 2015/16.
Over 2015/16, the Trust reported two incidents of MRSA
against a target of one. However, we reported 37 cases
of C. Difficile against a target of no more than 44. Each
case of MRSA or C. Difficile is thoroughly investigated
so appropriate action is taken to help reduce future
infections. More information is provided on page 6.

Patient experience

In 2015, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust was one of the
first NHS Trusts to sign up to “John’s Campaign”, a national
initiative about giving relatives and carers of those living
with dementia the right to stay with them in hospital. You
can find out more about the campaign and on work we
are doing to improve services for people with dementia on
page 12.
One of our goals is to empower local people to make
improvements to our services. As part of this commitment,
we work closely with volunteer groups, including the Patient
Welfare Forum (PWF) at University Hospital Lewisham and
the Patient User Group (PUG) at Queen Elizabeth Hospital.
Stella Kyrias, Chair of the PWF, commented: “In 2015/6, the
Patient Welfare Forum voluntary group was supported
by the Trust and made 79 visits to wards and clinics,
speaking to 289 patients and relatives. When we made
recommendations for changes – for example about having
food available in the evenings – we were pleased that the
Trust took action and made improvements.”
If you are interested in becoming a volunteer with the
PWF please email: stellakyriazis@yahoo.com. A copy of the
PWF’s annual report is available on the Trust’s website:
www.lewishamandgreenwich.nhs.uk.

Transformation

The Trust’s in-house Transformation team supports the
Trust to make improvements which require different ways
of working or radical change. One of the ways the team did
this over 2015/16 was through delivering the “Living Our
Values” (LOV) programme.
The aim of the programme is to embed the Trust’s
values (described on the inside front cover) within the
organisation and make them central to how we work.
Through the LOV programme, staff are supported to
20

develop a local charter which describes specifically how
those values are demonstrated in their team and place
of work. For staff in corporate areas, it helps them to
describe how many ‘steps away’ their role is from front
line patient care, and how their role impacts on the care
of our patients.
53 services across University Hospital Lewisham, Queen
Elizabeth Hospital and our community services have
participated in the programme so far. Carol Spanswick,
Matron in A&E at University Hospital Lewisham, commented:
“Developing our local charter was a really positive move
forwards and feedback from the patient and staff surveys
have been encouraging. There are many challenges that an
A&E department faces every day but the LOV programme
helps to focus on how we can improve our services.”

Corporate nursing

The Corporate Nursing Team has been reorganised this
year to be able to have a more significant impact on our
Trust key quality developments for 2016/17. The new team
has seen a reorganisation to allow for a Deputy Director of
Nursing, an Associate Director of Nursing and a division of
the two senior Heads of Nursing roles to better align with
Workforce and Education and Professional Practice. The
team has led a range of developments, including:
Providing a development programme for all our ward
manager level (band 7) nursing staff – to ensure
consistent standards across the organisation. Over
2016/17, the course is being continued and further
developed to include staff at band 6 level.
Running successful recruitment campaigns to attract
the best staff. This includes running major recruitment
drives to recruit an additional 120 healthcare
assistants. We have also run campaigns to support
staff who have had a career break – for example to
start a family – to return to work.
Leading the Trust-wide review and implementation
		 of standardised medical devices and associated
training programmes.

Clinical effectiveness

The Clinical Effectiveness Department supports the Trust
in reviewing the care provided to local people against
best practice guidelines. Over 2015/16, work has included
supporting divisions with their process for benchmarking
their clinical outcomes and improving the process of
how the Trust reviews local and national mortality data.
As reported in the performance section, the Trust-wide
mortality data for last year indicates that the organisation
provides a good level of care (see page 8).

Compliance and regulation

We have set up a new compliance and regulation team
to support the Trust in meeting the requirements of all
statutory, legislative and regulatory standards, including
those of the Care Quality Commission. The team also
oversees other external reviews of the Trust’s services, and
has performed a range of internal reviews to ensure the
organisation meets best practice.
2015
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15. Sustainability report
Introduction

As an NHS organisation, and as a spender of public funds,
we have an obligation to work in a way that has a positive
effect on the communities we serve. Sustainability means
spending public money well, the smart and efficient
use of natural resources and building healthy, resilient
communities. By making the most of social, environmental
and economic assets we can improve health both in the
immediate and long term even in the context of the rising
cost of natural resources.
We acknowledge this responsibility to our patients, local
communities and the environment by working hard to
minimise our footprint.
As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system,
it is our duty to contribute towards the level of ambition
set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS,
public health and social care system by 34% (from a 1990
baseline). This target is equivalent to a 28% reduction
from a 2013 baseline by 2020.

Sustainable Development
Management Plan

One of the ways in which an organisation can embed
sustainability is through the use of a Sustainable
Development Management Plan (SDMP). We will be
developing an SDMP in the future for consideration by
the Board.
As an organisation that acknowledges our responsibility
towards creating a sustainable future, we help achieve
that goal by running awareness campaigns that promote
the benefits of sustainability to our staff.

Climate change brings new challenges to providing
healthcare both in direct effects on our healthcare estate,
but also on patient health. Examples of recent years
include the effects of heat waves, extreme temperatures
and prolonged periods of cold, floods, droughts etc. The
Trust has identified the need to develop a Board-approved
plan for future climate change risks affecting our area.

As an organisation that acknowledges our
responsibility towards creating a sustainable future, we
help achieve that goal by running awareness campaigns
that promote the benefits of sustainability to our staff.

Annual
Report

2015
16

21

Energy use over 2015/16

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust has spent £4,129,836
on energy in 2015/16, which is a 0.7% decrease on energy
spend from last year.
Carbon Emissions - Energy Use
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25000
20000
15000
10000
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0

2014/15
Gas
Electricity

RESOURCE
Gas
Oil
Coal
Electricity
Green
Electricity

Use (kWh)
tCO2e

2015/16

2014/15

2015/16

37,059,614

35,105,687

7,041

6,670

Use (kWh)

0

0

tCO2e

0

0

Use (kWh)

0

0

tCO2e

0

0

Use (kWh)

0

0

tCO2e
Use (kWh)
tCO2e

Total Energy CO2e
Total Energy Spend

0

0

26,888,093

26,442,936

11,562

11,370

18,603

18,040

£4,157,868

£4,129,836

Travel

We can improve local air quality and improve the health
of our community by promoting active travel – to our staff
and to the patients and public that use our services.
Every action counts and we are a lean organisation trying
to realise efficiencies across the board for cost and carbon
(CO2) reductions. We support a culture for active travel to
improve staff wellbeing and reduce sickness. For example,
our cycling to work scheme includes cycle maintenance
and secure on site cycle storage facilities.
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16. Directors’ report
Trust Board members

Members of the current Trust Board – as at August 2016 – are listed below. For details of the Board over 2015/16 please
see the remuneration report on page 27.

Elizabeth Butler

Tim Higginson

Elizabeth Aitken

John Ballard

Stuart Carney

Claire Champion

Val Davison

John Hennessey

Keith Howard

Sukhvinder KaurStubbs

Janet Lynch

Russell Manley

Non-Executive Director

Director of Workforce
& Education - co-opted

Julia Mundy

Lynn Saunders

Veronika Simons

Chairman

Non-Executive Director

Director of Estates and
Facilities - co-opted

Lee McPhail
Director of Service Delivery
- co-opted
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Chief Executive

Deputy Chief Executive and
Director of Nursing and
Clinical Quality

Non-Executive Director

Medical Director

Non-Executive Director

Director of Strategy, Business
and Communications - co-opted

Non-Executive Director

Director of Finance
and Information

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director
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Role of the Trust Board

Our Board plays a key role in shaping the strategy,
vision and purpose of an organisation. They hold the
organisation to account for the delivery of strategy and
ensure value for money. They are also responsible for
assuring that risks to the organisation and the public
are managed and mitigated effectively. The Board is led
by an independent chair and composed of a mixture of
independent non executive members appointed by the
Trust Development Authority (now NHS Improvement)
and executive members, who work for the Trust. The
Board has a collective responsibility for the performance
of the organisation.

Details of company directorships and
other significant interests

The register of interests for Board members over 2015/16
is below:
NAME

DECLARATION

Dr Elizabeth Aitken

Nil

Ms Elizabeth Butler

EJ Butler FCA Chartered Accountant, Sole
Practitioner. (Clients include employees of the NHS);
Co-opted member of the Audit and Risk Committee
of the General Medical Council; Advisor to the Royal
College of Nursing Governance Review; Independent
member of the Audit Committee of the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England and
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Royal
College of Veterinary Surgeons

Mr John Ballard

Nil

Prof Stuart Carney

Member of Order of Malta/Orders of St John Care Trust
Charity, which sponsors the Orders of St John Care
Trust. The Trust undertakes development work with
clinical commissioning groups. Head of Division at
King’s College London, School of Medical Education
that undertakes medical education research with
funding from the Guy’s and St Thomas’ Charitable Trust

Ms Claire Champion

Nil

Ms Val Davison

Director of Dulwich Consulting Ltd – Core Business is
interim management/management consultancy for NHS
organisations and for companies seeking to do business
with the NHS. (No work undertaken in SE London).
Currently undertaking interim Programme Manager
role for Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust. Provision
of ad hoc Management Consultancy to Ryhurst Ltd and
Guideon Ltd.

Mr John Hennessey

Nil

Mr Tim Higginson

Nil

Mr Keith Howard

Nil

Ms Sukhvinder
Kaur-Stubbs

Director, Swan Housing Association; MD of Engage
– Building Networks of Trust; Trustee and Chair of
Audit and Risk Committee of the Social Care Institute
for Excellence; Fellow of Collaborate CIC; Member of
the University of Birmingham Council.

Prof Gabrielle
Kingsley

Gabrielle Kingsley was Professor of Rheumatology,
through the Department of Rheumatology, King’s
College London, which holds research funding
for clinical trials and other research studies in
inflammatory arthritis. Grants received from the
National Institute for Health Research, Arthritis
Research UK and other charitable bodies for
research into arthritis. She had occasional
involvement in recruitment to commercially
sponsored studies but not as Principal investigator.

Ms Joanna Knowles

Interim Director of Operations, Cystic Fibrosis
Trust. The Cystic Fibrosis Trust receives funding
from NHS England and Scotland for data analysis
Services. Treasurer of ColaLife, a charity distributing
medicines in Zambia.
Director of Finance for the King’s College Hospital
Charitable Funds for one day a week from
1 September 2015.

Ms Janet Lynch

Nil

Mr Russell Manley

Partner, P2G LLP

Mr Lee McPhail

Nil

Ms Lynn Saunders

Nil

Ms Veronika Simons

Works as a Consultant in Social Care, not currently
doing business with the NHS.

How the Board is appraised

The Chief Executive and non executive directors are
appraised by the Chair. In December 2015 the Board
commissioned the Good Governance Institute to assess
the operation of the Trust Board, both internally and in
relation to effective team working and leadership, and in
terms of Board integration with committees and wider
organisational governance arrangements. An independent
director will review the Chair’s personal appraisal and the
Chair is appraised by the Trust Development Authority
(now NHS Improvement).

Audit committees

A range of committees report directly to the Board and
are chaired by non-executive directors. These include
the audit committee, which meets five times a year and
approves the annual accounts and annual report. Over
2016/16, membership of the audit committee included:
Ms Joanna Knowles
John Ballard
Russell Manley
The other Board committees are the finance and
investment committee, remuneration committee,
workforce and education committee, commercial
committee and integrated governance committee.

Annual
Report

2015
16

25

17. Protecting data
Information governance

“Information governance” refers to the way by which
the NHS handles all organisational information in a
secure manner – in particular the personal and sensitive
information of patients and employees. Effective
information governance is about ensuring that personal
information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and
effectively, in order to deliver the best possible care.
Every year the Trust is required to submit an annual
Information Governance Toolkit submission. This is an
online self-assessment which allows NHS and other
related organisations to demonstrate whether they are
meeting information governance requirements.
The Trust is required to upload evidence to support this
assessment. Each requirement is rated from a level 0 to
3. To achieve an overall ‘Satisfactory’ rating each control
must be scored at a level 2 or more.
For 2015/16, the Trust achieved a satisfactory rating of
76 per cent, achieving a green satisfactory pass rate.
This provides the Board with substantial assurance
that appropriate controls are suitably designed and
consistently applied to manage the information risks of
the business.

Information governance incidents for
2015/16

During the financial year of 2015/16 the Trust had a total
of 133 reported information governance incidents. These
incidents were categorised and assessed at a severity
level of between 0 - 2 based on the Health and Social Care
Information Centre guidance of assessing information
governance incidents. For the purposes of the annual
report the Trust is required to report on Level 1 and 2
incidents only.

2. On 12 September 2015, a patient found her online
self-referral maternity form on Google after doing a
local search of her full name. The patient immediately
reported the incident to the Trust who quickly
suspended the web link. IT investigated the issue
promptly and did a penetration test to prevent any
future issues. A random selection of IT patient referrals
was also carried out to determine if there were any
further web issues. No issues were flagged. The Trust
will continue to monitor the information risks of this
system in light of these events and ensure it provides a
secure environment for its web link activities.

Level 1 Incidents

A total of 61 incidents were marked at Level 1 and
categorised as follows:
TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF LEVEL 1 INCIDENTS FOR 2015-16
Total
A

Corruption or inability to recover
electronic data

0

B

Disclosed in Error

41

C

Lost in Transit

0

D

Lost or stolen hardware

0

E

Lost or stolen paperwork

9

F

Non-secure Disposal – hardware

0

G

Non-secure Disposal – paperwork

0

H

Uploaded to website in error

0

I

Technical security failing (including hacking)

1

WJ

Unauthorised access/disclosure

4

K

Other

6

Total

61

The Trust continues to embed and improve its information
governance practices across the organisation.

Of these, two incidents were marked as level 2 serious
incidents which were reported to the Department of
Health, the Information Commissioner’s Office and the
Health and Social Care Information Centre. A summary of
these incidents is below:

Level 2 incidents

1. On 1 May 2015, a member of the public found some
handover sheets that related to 48 patients and 18
babies in a fly-tip area at Rutland Park, London SE6.
It was identified that a member of staff had placed
information in black bin liners for the local refuse
collectors to collect the next day. No staff action was
taken as the member of staff had already left the Trust.
Following the event the Trust reviewed its Information
Governance staff training programme to ensure all
clinical staff had completed their mandatory training
for the year. We also did a publicity campaign to remind
staff of their patient confidentiality obligations.
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18.		Remuneration report
Remuneration policy for directors and senior managers

Pay for executive directors is set and agreed by the Trust’s remuneration Committee. Other senior managers’ pay is in
line with NHS Agenda for Change pay scales.
All executive directors report to the Chief Executive and, like other staff, have regular appraisals to set and assess
performance against objectives. There is no performance related pay within the Trust.
All our executive directors were appointed as permanent employees. The notice period for executive directors is six
months. If applicable, termination payments would be made in line with contractual entitlements.
The remuneration report is subject to audit.
Remuneration Report: Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers - Remuneration

£000

£100

£000

£000

2015/16

All pension
related benefits
(bands of £2500)

£000

Benefits in kind
rounded to the
nearest

£000

Bonus payments
(bands of £5000)

Other
Remuneration
(bands of £5000)

All pension
related benefits
(bands of £2500)

Benefits in kind
rounded to the
nearest 100

Bonus payments
(bands of £5000)

£000

Totals

Salary (bands
of £5000)

Name

2014/2015

Other
Remuneration
(bands of £5000)

Salary (bands
of £5000)

2015/2016

£100

2014/15

Title

£000

£000

Chief Executive

195 - 200

-

-

-

- 195 - 200

-

-

-

155 - 160

-

-

-

22.5 - 25 155 - 160

-

-

-

150 - 155

-

-

-

27.5 - 30 150 - 155

-

-

-

75 - 80

115 - 120

-

-

0 - 2.5 100 - 105 130 - 135

-

-

- 195 - 200 215 - 220

10 - 15

10 - 15

-

-

17.5 - 20

-

-

-

-

-

45 - 50

-

140 - 145

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

140 - 145

-

120 - 125

-

-

-

7.5 - 10 120 - 125

-

-

-

57.5 - 60

125 - 130

175 - 180

120 - 125

15 - 20

-

-

7.5 - 10 120 - 125

-

-

-

47.5 - 50

140 - 145

165 - 170

120 - 125

-

-

-

5 - 7.5 120 - 125

-

-

-

17.5 - 20

125 - 130

135 - 140

Executive Directors
Tim Higginson

120 122.5

195 - 200 315 - 320

Director of
John Hennessey

Finance,
Information &

35 - 37.5 170 - 180

190 - 195

Performance
Director of
Claire Champion

Nursing & Clinical
Quality and

102.5 105

175 - 180 250 - 255

Deputy CEO
Medical Director
Gabrielle Kingsley

(Deceased
07/01/2016)
Interim Medical

Elizabeth Aitken

Director
(F 09/02/2016)

Other members of the Board
Director of

Lee McPhail

Service Delivery
Director of
Strategy,

Lynn Saunders

Business and
Communications
Director of

Keith Howard

Facilities &
Estates
Director of

Janet Lynch

Workforce &
Education

The method for calculating the value of the pension benefits are calculating the increase in the annual pension compared to the previous year (these figures
have been inflated in line with inflation) multiplying by a factor of 20 plus any increase in the lump sum minus the amount of pension contributions made by the
employee during the year.
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Remuneration Report: Salary and Pension Entitlements of Senior Managers - Remuneration
2015/2016

2014/2015

(bands
of £5000)

Totals
Benefits

All 2015/16 2014/15

Benefits

All

Salary

Other

Bonus

Remuneration payments

in kind

pension

(bands

Remuneration

payments

in kind

(bands of

(bands of

rounded

related of £5000)

(bands of

(bands of

rounded

related

£5000)

£5000)

to the

£5000)

£5000)

to the

benefits

Other

Salary

Bonus

benefits

pension

nearest (bands of

nearest (bands of

£100

£2500)

£2500)
£000

£100

£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

25 - 30

-

-

-

- 40 - 45

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

5 - 10

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

5 - 10

NonExecutive
Director

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

5 - 10

NonExecutive
Director

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

0-5

NonExecutive
Director

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

0-5

NonExecutive
Director
(F 08/06/15)

0-5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

Sukhvinder NonExecutive
KaurDirector
Stubbs
(F 09/06/15)

5 - 10

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5 - 10

-

Name

£000

£000

Chairman

40-45

-

NonExecutive
Director

5 - 10

NonExecutive
Director

Title

Executive Directors
Elizabeth

Butler
John
Ballard
Joanna
Knowles
Veronika
Simons
Stuart
Carney
Val
Davison
Russell
Manley

25 - 30

The method for calculating the value of the pension benefits are calculating the increase in the annual pension compared to the previous year (these figures
have been inflated in line with inflation) multiplying by a factor of 20 plus any increase in the lump sum minus the amount of pension contributions made by the
employee during the year.

Remuneration Report: Salary and Pension Benefits

Name and title

Real increase/ Real increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
pension at pension lump
age 60 sum at age 60
(bands of
(bands of
£2500)
£2500)

Total accrued
pension at age
60 at 31 March
2015
(bands of
£5000)

Total accrued Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent
pension lump
Transfer Value
Transfer Value
sum at age 60
at 31 March
at 31 March
at 31 March
2016
2015
2015
(bands of
£5000)

Real
Increase
in Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value

Employers
Contribution
to Stakeholder
Pension

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

-

-

75 - 80

230 - 235

1,708

1,688

-

-

John Hennessey
- Director of Finance,
Information &
Performance

0 - 2.5

5 - 7.5

35 - 40

115 - 120

761

706

46

-

Claire Champion
- Director of Nursing
& Clinical Quality and
Deputy CEO

2.5 - 5

7.5 - 10

45 - 50

145 - 150

959

889

60

-

Gabrielle Kingsley
- Director of Clinical
and Academic Strategy /
Medical Director *

0 - 2.5

-

75 - 80

160 - 165

1,433

1,391

25

-

Elizabeth Aitken
- Medical Director **

0 - 2.5

-

50 - 55

90 - 95

716

687

21

-

Janet Lynch
- Director of Workforce &
Education

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

40 - 45

130 - 135

804

770

26

-

Lynn Saunders
- Director of Business
Development

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

30 - 35

95 - 100

-

713

-

-

Keith Howard
- Director of Estates
& Facilities

0 - 2.5

2.5 - 5

25 - 30

75 - 80

568

529

33

-

Tim Higginson
- Chief Executive

* Deceased 07/01/2016
** From 09/02/2016
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As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable
remuneration, there are no entries in respect of pensions
for Non-Executive members.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially
assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits
and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the
scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme,
or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another
pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves
a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued
in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate
to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to
which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and other
pension details, include the value of any pension benefits
in another scheme or arrangement which the individual
has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the
member as a result of their purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are
calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed
by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV
effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions
paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement)
and uses common market valuation factors for the start
and end of the period.
The March 2016 Budget announced that the discount
rate for unfunded pension schemes would reduce with
immediate effect therefore impacting upon the CETV
factors. However, as the new CETV factors are not yet
available, the NHS Pension Agency has used the existing
factors effective on 15 March 2016 to calculate CETVs.

Exit packages

Exit packages were paid for nine staff departures during
the year at a cost of £63K.
Reporting of Exit Packages for Staff Leaving in 2015/16
Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
other
departures
agreed

Total number
of exit
packages by
cost band

Less than £10,000

-

7

7

£10,000 - £25,000

-

1

1

£25,001 - £50,000

1

-

1

£50,001 - £100,000

-

-

-

£100,001 - £150,000

-

-

-

£150,001 - £200,000

-

-

-

more than £200,000

-

-

-

Total number of exit
packages

1

8

9

Exit package cost band
(including any special
payment element)

Total resources
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£s

£s

£s

26,950

36,119

63,069

Highest paid director and median pay
of workforce

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship
between the remuneration of the highest paid director in
their organisation and the median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust in the financial year
2015/16 was £199,372 (2014-15 £233,945). This was 6.30 times
(2014/15 7.03 times) the median remuneration of
the workforce, which was £31,665 (2014-15 £33,258). The
director was the medical director and a senior academic.
In 2015/16 no employees received remuneration in excess of
the highest-paid director (none in 2014-15). Remuneration
ranged from £15,239 to £199,372 (2014-15 £14,294 to £233,945).
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated
performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind as well as
severance payments, where appropriate. The highest paid
director also has a clinical excellence award. It does not
include employer pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.
Remuneration Report:
Median Pay & Highest Paid Director
2015-16

2014-15

Pay of Highest Paid Director

£199,372

£233,945

Median Pay

£31,665

£33,258

6.30

7.03

Median as Multiple of Highest Paid Director

Review of tax arrangements of public sector
employees - off-payroll engagements
Reporting bodies are required to disclose details in respect
of the tax arrangements of public sector employees relating
to off-payroll engagements under Treasury PES(2012)17.
The disclosure covers the following off-payroll engagements:
Details of all off-payroll engagements as of 31
March 2016, for more than £220 per day and that
last for longer than six months

Number

The total number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2015

1

The number that have existed for less than one year
at time of reporting.

-

The number that have existed for between one and two years
at time of reporting.

-

The number that have existed for between two and three years
at time of reporting.

-

The number that have existed for between three and four years
at time of reporting.

-

The number that have existed for four or more years
at time of reporting.

1

Declaration that all existing off-payroll engagements, outlined
above, have at some point been subject to a risk based assessment
as to whether assurance needs to be sought that the individual
is paying the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that
assurance has been sought.

1

The Trust has had no new off-payroll engagements that
have reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2015
and 31 March 2016, for more than £220 per day.
The Trust has had no off-payroll engagements of board
members and/or senior officials with significant financial
responsibility between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016.
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19. Staffing report
Our staffing profile

At the time of writing (May 2016), we have 6,065 full time
members of staff. A total of 1,019 employees work part-time,
making up 18 per cent of the Trust’s permanent workforce.
In January 2015, the Trust published a workforce
equalities report, which is available on our website
(www.lewishamandgreenwich.nhs.uk) or upon request
(tel: 020 8333 3297). We regularly analyse our staffing
profile so we can take action where there are groups
which are under-represented.

Staffing

By gender, the breakdown of the Trust’s workforce is
as follows:
Around 81 per cent of the Trust’s overall workforce
		 is female.
65 per cent of all senior managers are female
56 per cent of directors in the organisation are female.
The composition of the Trust’s permanent workforce
is ethnically diverse which reflects the diversity of the
local population:
53% of the Trust’s staff are white.
26.8% of the Trust’s staff are black.
9.4% of the Trust’s staff are Asian.
7% of the Trust’s staff are Chinese or other ethnic group.
2.8% of the Trust’s staff are of mixed race.
The remaining members of staff (around 1%) chose
		 not to state their ethnicity when joining the Trust.
In general, there is a lack of black and ethnic minority
(BME) representation amongst staff at higher pay grades.
This is an issue that the Trust is committed to addressing
and one of our corporate objectives is to promote and
enhance diversity in our management structure.

Equality statement

We recognise that everyone has different needs in relation
to public services, and that in both the workplace and
as service users, certain individuals or groups of people
can experience unfair and unequal outcomes. To assist
us in understanding and taking action where necessary,
the Trust has implemented the Department of Health’s
Equality Delivery System for the NHS.
Implementing this system has helped us to meet the
commitment set out above as well as the requirements of
the Equalities Act 2010.

Health and wellbeing of staff

Our analysis shows that over 2015/16, a total of 50,177 days
were lost due to staff sickness in the Trust. This equates
to 9.04 sickness days per member of staff, which is a slight
decrease on the previous year (when the average was 9.14
days of sickness per member of staff).

30

We are working with staff to identify how we can best support
health and wellbeing. In addition, we promote a range of
initiatives including regular health and wellbeing days,
ongoing provision of free physiotherapy, occupational health
services, confidential counselling and flexible working options.

National survey

The national staff survey is undertaken annually by all
NHS organisations enabling comparisons between similar
Trusts. The 2015 survey was carried out between late
September and December 2014.
Our top results were:
The number of staff reporting errors, near misses or
		 incidents witnessed in the last month. It is
		 important we encourage a culture where we share
		 learning – including when things have gone wrong.
The number of staff saying they receive
		 quality appraisals.
Staff reporting good communication between senior
		 management and staff.
The quality of non-mandatory training, learning
		 or development.
Staff agreeing that their role makes a difference
		 to patients/service users.
The results indicated that we need to address a number of
areas including:
The number of staff who work extra hours.
The number staff witnessing potentially harmful
		 errors, near misses or incidents.
Staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse
		 from staff in last 12 months.
Staff experiencing discrimination at work in last
		 12 months.
Staff suffering work related stress in last 12 months.
The five key findings where staff experiences have
improved since the 2014 survey are:
The number of staff appraised in the last 12 months.
Staff support from immediate managers.
Staff motivation at work.
Fewer staff feeling pressure to attend work when
		 feeling unwell.
A reduction in the number of staff experiencing
		 discrimination at work.
We are working with staff to explore these issues and draw
up an action plan for improvement.

Staff awards

In 2015 we celebrated the third year of our staff awards
which celebrate the hard work and commitment of our
staff. There are nine categories in total for staff and
partner organisations. The ‘Healthcare Hero’ winner
is chosen by members of the public and this year was
awarded to Ruth Cochrane, a consultant gynaecologist
who was nominated by local mum Sandra Skelton for her
support during her pregnancy.
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Sandra said: “Quite simply, I would not have got through my
pregnancy without Ruth there supporting me. She provided
me with constant reassurances and would chat to my
unborn baby, which was lovely, and always made a fuss of
my three year old son, who came with me to the scans.
“This meant I slowly began to relax, enjoy my pregnancy
and believe that my dream of having another baby would
become a reality. Ruth arranged to deliver my baby girl
Poppy herself by C-section and knowing that she was
going to do it and having her next to me in theatre made
the birth the most amazing experience; I loved it!”

20.Order a copy of
this report
If you would like a hard copy of the report or accounts,
please email communications.lg@nhs.net or call 020 8333
3297 and we will send you a copy. Alternatively, you can
write to Communications Department, University Hospital
Lewisham, Lewisham High Street, London SE13 6LH.

NHS pensions scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions
of the NHS pensions scheme. Details of the benefits
payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS
Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that
covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies,
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in
England and Wales. For further detail, please refer to note
8.6 on page 58 of the annual accounts.
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Annual governance
statement
1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016

Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining
a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of the NHS Trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the quality standards, public
funds and departmental assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that
the NHS Trust is administered prudently and economically
and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively.
I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the
Accountable Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of
internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to
a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and
objectives of Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust, evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust
from 1st April 2015 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

All governance and assurance structures within the Trust
have been reviewed following the merger and a new
structure for the management of Divisional Governance is in
place. This provides assurance to the Integrated Governance
Committee and Trust Board. The Trust Board and those
committees responsible for the scrutiny of risk management
and clinical governance regularly review the Trust’s Risk
Management Strategy, Policy and underpinning processes.
Risk issues are reported to the Board through the Integrated
Governance Committee, which carries the Board’s delegated
authority for the close scrutiny of Risk Management and
the Assurance Framework. In order to manage its extensive
agenda, the Integrated Governance Committee has three
formal reporting committees (Quality and Safety, Patient
Experience and Safeguarding), which provide the Integrated
Governance Committee with assurance regarding work
within their respective remits. Each reporting committee has
formal Terms of Reference and submits reports and minutes
to the Integrated Governance Committee on a regular
basis. The Integrated Governance Committee also seeks
assurance that the Trust is conforming to best practice in
corporate governance, health and safety and information
governance and monitors the on-going work in these areas
through the Quality and Safety Committee. The Integrated
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Governance Committee includes two lay members, who
provide a valuable service-user perspective and an
independent review of all Committee business. Mechanisms
are in place to ensure that the Audit Committee and the
Integrated Governance Committee communicate on shared
issues. Financial risks are scrutinised by the Finance and
Investment Committee (a Sub-committee of the Board),
reflected in the Assurance Framework, and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board. Workforce and Educational
risks are scrutinised by the Workforce and Education
Committee (a Sub-committee of the Board). The key
workforce risk continues to be the Trust’s ability to recruit
permanent staff to clinical roles, and the impact that this
has on agency spend.
Management and ownership of risk is delegated to the
appropriate level from Director to local management
teams through the Divisional management and
Governance structure. Local risk registers are maintained
and monitored through Directorate and Divisional
management and Governance meetings, with exceptions
reported to the Trust Management Executive.
The Trust Board and the Board Sub-committees all
maintain attendance records and assess their own
effectiveness. The Board Sub-committees provide annual
reports and committee self-assessments to the Trust
Board about the coverage of their work.

The risk and control framework

The Trust Board is responsible for determining the
strategic direction of the Trust, including that of quality
governance and risk management. It is supported by two
committees, which provide assurance on risk management
issues: the Audit Committee and the Integrated
Governance Committee. The Board reviews the interaction,
ways of working, Terms of Reference, and membership of
its committees.
The Trust’s fulfilment of the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) registration and regulation criteria forms part of
its assessment of internal control. A process of internal
quality inspections is in place to review compliance
against the CQC standards and associated action plans are
monitored through the Divisional Governance and Quality
and Safety Committee meetings.
The Care Quality Commission Quality Report on Lewisham
and Greenwich NHS Trust cited the single governance
structure as an area of good practice.
The Trust Board reviewed and approved the Risk
Management Strategy and Policy for the Trust in
February 2015 and the next annual review will be
presented to the Board in April 2016. The Strategy clearly
defines risk management structures, accountability
and responsibilities and incorporates consideration
of stakeholders. The Risk Management Strategy gives
a complete overview of the risk assessment and
management process, from identification to mitigation
and forms the basis of the Assurance Framework and
the reporting arrangements to the Trust Board. The
prioritisation of risks included in the Trust Risk Register
is based on a risk rating method (the Trust Risk Matrix).
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The Trust Risk Matrix is used to grade issues according to
the impact (consequence) of the risk and the likelihood
of occurrence. It is used to help prioritisation of all risk
management activities, including complaints, claims and
adverse incidents. It is also used to assist prioritisation
of issues submitted to Risk Registers. Risks identified
scoring eight or above on the Matrix (or where the issue
covers more than one Division or professional group, or
the Division is unable to fund the solution from existing
resources) are considered by the Divisional General
Managers, and / or Trust level risk managers for submission
to the Corporate Risk Register. This aids consistency in the
prioritisation of risks. The Integrated Governance Committee
reviews the Corporate Risk Register on a regular basis.
The recommendations of national and other high-level
reports are reviewed at appropriate Trust level committees
and where gaps are identified, these are also submitted
for inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register. The Internal
Auditors recently reviewed Divisional Governance and Risk
management and in their report, dated December 2015,
reached an overall conclusion of significant assurance with
minor improvement opportunities.

directorate cover Patient Safety, Health & Safety and Risk,
Legal Services, Information Governance, Compliance and
Regulation, Clinical Effectiveness and Patient Advice &
Liaison Service and Complaints, Patient Experience and
Quality Improvement, Corporate Nursing, and Infection
Prevention and Control structure. Third party contractors
currently provide manual handling advice to the Trust. The
lead executive has continued to lead a holistic approach
to risk management within the Trust by developing a
new corporate risk and issues framework, strengthening
reporting between the committees within the risk and
governance structures, and upwards to the Trust Board.

The Medical Devices Group requires applicants for new
medical devices requiring capital funding to identify within
the application if the item is on the local or corporate risk
register. This is one of the criteria that inform decision
making regarding the approval to purchase new medical
devices, when the Medical Devices Group sits as a panel.
The outcome of this process is reported to the Capital
Planning Group. As the entry to the local or corporate risk
register is only one of several factors taken into account,
justification is made whenever decisions are made to
allocate funding to items appearing as a lesser priority
than others.

The Audit Committee monitors and assesses both internal
control issues and financial risk. The Audit Committee’s
responsibilities for Risk Management are clearly outlined
in the Committee Terms of Reference. The Committee
assures itself that risk management processes are robust
through the work of the Integrated Governance Committee.

The Trust has a regular programme of quality inspections,
based on the Care Quality Commission inspections, to
provide on-going assurance in all wards and clinical
departments. During the year 55 inspections were
completed. Non-Executive Directors on the Board have
also taken part in several of these inspections. There is a
process to re-audit areas where deficiencies were noted.
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the
NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place to
ensure all employer obligations contained within the
Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s
contributions and payments into the Scheme are in
accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member
Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the
organisation’s obligations under Equality, Diversity and
Human Rights legislation are complied with.

Leadership and responsibilities

Following the retirement of the Director of Knowledge
Governance and Communications new executive portfolios
were created. The Director of Nursing and Clinical Quality
is the lead executive for the risk management structure
and processes. The post holders within a restructured
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The Director of Nursing and Clinical Quality is the lead
executive for clinical governance, assisted by the Medical
Director. The Director of Finance and Information is the
lead executive for financial risk and accountable for
effective financial control and appropriate internal and
external audit. The Deputy Medical Director (Professional
Standards) is the responsible officer for the revalidation of
doctors. This is monitored by the Workforce and Education
Committee with an annual report to the Trust Board.

Audit managers from KPMG (internal auditors) and Grant
Thornton (external audit) attend all Audit Committee
meetings and are responsible for the development of
the audit reports and findings and the Annual Report to
those charged with Governance. The Committee approves
the annual Internal Audit Plan. This Plan is based on
the Trust’s Assurance Framework. The Audit Committee
receives details of all the reports of the Internal Auditors.
Reports that impact on clinical risks are also reported to
the Integrated Governance Committee. The main purposes
of the audit reports are to provide Management, the Audit
Committee and the Trust Board with:
An opinion of the adequacy of internal control;
Information on significant audit findings and
		 recommendations.
The Internal Audit Plan covers both financial and nonfinancial areas and includes a number of operational and
support systems. Management and ownership of risk is
delegated to the appropriate level from Director to local
management teams through the clinical and operational
management structure. All managers are responsible
for implementing and monitoring any identified and
appropriate risk management control measures within
their designated area and scope of responsibility.

Induction and training

New staff joining the Trust must attend corporate and
local induction programmes during which they are
introduced to key risk management principles including
incident reporting, hand hygiene, health and safety, fire
safety, manual handling, complaints, fraud, whistleblowing and emergency planning. Clinical staff are also
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updated in the principles of patient safety, safeguarding of
children and vulnerable adults, medicines management,
and consent to examination or treatment.
Attendance levels at induction and for mandatory training
are monitored by the Trust Management Executive,
Workforce and Education Committee and the Trust Board.
The Trust has developed a single incident reporting system
that is used by all grades of staff, and systems to ensure
that the organisation learns from issues raised by serious
incidents, complaints and claims.
Information about risk management processes and key
policy documents are available on the Trust intranet.
General awareness-raising for staff is also undertaken
through staff briefings, newsletters and other risk
management awareness and training days that staff can
book onto through the Education and Training Department.
The Trust Counter Fraud Specialist actively promotes fraud
awareness through staff training and induction sessions,
newsletter and an annual fraud awareness week.

Policies and procedures

An integrated approach to the management of financial,
organisational, environmental and clinical risk is provided
by the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy that
has been endorsed by the Board and is reviewed annually.
The Strategy includes links to other key risk management
policies and sets out the structures and processes by
which risk is to be managed throughout the organisation. .

Information governance / data security

The Trust has an established Information Governance
Steering Committee, the purpose of which is to review
and improve the Trust’s position in respect of Information
Governance, focusing on the initiatives included in the
national reporting tool, “The Information Governance (IG)
Toolkit”, which are currently:
Information Governance Management;
Confidentiality & Data Protection Assurance;
Information Security Assurance (including the Trust’s
		 Registration Authority);
Clinical Information Assurance;
Secondary Use Assurance;
Corporate Information Assurance.
The Steering Committee meets quarterly and is chaired by
the Deputy Director of Governance. The Trust’s Caldicott
Guardian* (a Consultant in Chemical Pathology) is a
member of the Committee. The Steering Committee
reports into the Trust’s Integrated Governance Committee,
both through the minutes of its meetings and also on an
exception-reporting basis, so that the Committee is kept
informed of any risks relating to information assurance
within the Trust and to ensure that mitigating action plans
are in place to address such risks.
There were two Serious Incidents relating to Information
Governance between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 (as
defined by the Trust Incident Reporting and Management
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policy). There was one additional Serious Incident
Requiring Investigation (SIRI - an incident classed
as a serious information governance incident by the
Department of Health) which was investigated in line with
the Trust’s policy framework.
[* A Caldicott Guardian is a senior person responsible
for protecting the confidentiality of patient and serviceuser information, and enabling appropriate information
sharing. The Guardian plays a key role in ensuring that
the NHS satisfies the highest practicable standards for
handling patient identifiable information.]

Role of divisions

Divisional Governance meetings are well established in
each Division. Divisions have also established their own
local Risk Registers to assist them to manage and monitor
the risks they identify arising from complaints, claims,
reported incidents and both clinical and non-clinical
risk assessments. Divisional managers are responsible
for instigating and co-ordinating all risk management
processes within their service including adverse incident
reporting, risk assessments and any necessary actions or
changes in practice arising from lessons learnt. All Divisions
are required to report to the Divisional Governance meeting
on key risk management issues within their service, and to
add identified risks that they are unable to deal with locally
or are wider than just their Division, to the Corporate Risk
Register. The Divisional Business Planning process must
take account of items on the Risk Register.
A system of local risk management co-ordinators and
Central Alerting System (CAS) liaison personnel within
each Division strengthens the local identification and
management of risk issues and links with the Trust
Risk Management Advisors. They are also the link staff
for ensuring good risk management standards, which
underpin the Care Quality Commission registration criteria
and NHS Litigation Authority.
Serious Incidents (SIs) are investigated through the
Divisions involved, with reports generated by managers
and signed-off by the Chief Executive. The Outcomes with
Learning Group reviews all incidents after completion
and monitors implementation of learning derived from
each SI as well as delivery of action plans arising. Training
in SI investigation and reporting has been carried out
in 2015/16 to achieve an improvement in the timely
completion of investigations and the preparation of SI
reports. This will also assist the timely sharing of report
outcomes and learning across the organisation.
All Divisions have a governance and risk lead, with
responsibility for ensuring that risk management and
clinical governance processes are applied consistently
within their Division. Divisional Associate Directors of
Quality and Safety have been in post since November
2015. These are senior clinicians who work with the
Deputy Medical Director (Quality and Safety) and the
Divisional Governance and Risk Leads to improve the
quality of services delivered.
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The Internal Auditors recently reviewed Divisional
Governance and Risk management at both corporate and
divisional levels and in their report, dated December 2015,
reached an overall conclusion of significant assurance
with minor improvement opportunities.

Risk identification and evaluation

Risks are identified via a variety of mechanisms:
a. All areas within the Trust report incidents and near
misses in line with the Trust’s Incident Reporting Policy.
Details of incidents are reported monthly through the
Directorate Governance structure and quarterly to the
Integrated Governance Committee.
b. The Trust’s Raising Concerns (Whistle-blowing) Policy
enables staff to raise concerns and to ensure that
they are promptly and properly investigated and
dealt with appropriately. The Trust has reviewed
local processes and arrangements in response to the
recommendations in the ‘Freedom to Speak Up’ review.
Following media coverage about “gagging clauses” in
the NHS, the Trust confirmed that it would not restrict
the right of staff to speak about patient safety issues
and would support staff that bring forward concerns
about safety and quality.
c. Risk Assessments, including Health and Safety and
Infection Control Audits are undertaken throughout
the Trust. All identified risks at all levels are evaluated
using a common methodology based on the risk matrix
contained in the Risk Management Standard AS/NZS
4360:1999.
d. The Trust’s Risk Register is generated through the
assessment process and reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure that action plans are being carried out
and risks can be added or deleted, as necessary. The
Integrated Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference
include the duty for the Committee to review the
Risk Register and the validity and rating of the Trust’s
risks on a regular basis. The Trust’s high-level risks,
as identified by the Directorate Management Teams,
are also reported in detail to the Trust Management
Executive and to the Integrated Governance Committee.
e. The Trust Board has undertaken specific additional
training on risk and discusses the key risks to the
organisation in depth at Board Seminars.
f. The Trust has reviewed the lessons learnt from the
Jimmy Savile Investigations in the NHS.

Other methods of identifying risks are:
Complaints and Parliamentary Health Service
		 Ombudsman Reports and recommendations
Care Quality Commission’s Intelligent Monitoring
		 reports and inspections
Inquest findings and HM Coroners’ recommendations
External reports such as the Francis Inquiry and
		 National Confidential Inquiries
Health and Safety visits undertaken by the General
		 Manager of each Division, accompanied by the Head
		 of Risk Management
Medico-legal claims and litigation
Learning from Serious Case Reviews
Ad hoc risk issues brought to either the Divisional
		 Governance and Performance meetings, the Health
		 and Safety Committee or Security Group, or the
		 Integrated Governance Committee
Reviewing local processes and arrangements in
		 response to the Jimmy Savile allegations
Incident reports and trend analysis
Internal reports that contribute towards revalidation
		 of doctors
internally generated reports from the Performance/
		 Information Team
Internal and external audit reports
Performance Reviews
Feedback from patient/public groups
Feedback from Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Patient satisfaction surveys including ‘Friends and
		 Family’ test
Chats, Queries and Concerns sessions
Focus Groups
Quality and Safety visits by Executive and
		 Non-Executive Directors
Patient-Led Assessment of the Care
		 Environment inspections
Public attendance and questions at Trust
		 Board meetings.

Central alerting system

Alerts from the Medicines and Healthcare Products
Regulatory Agency (MHRA) related to medical devices
are distributed in the Trust via a system of local Liaison
Officers. The Medical Equipment Group monitors that
a) the alerts have been appropriately distributed, and
b) that sufficient responses have been received to provide
assurance that the Trust has adequately tackled the
actions required.
Other alerts are monitored as appropriate by the Patient
Safety Group or Health and Safety Committee.

Data quality

Ensuring that data collected and used by the Trust is
accurate and complete is a key priority. The Trust Data
Quality function works with Divisions and service areas to
ensure that all staff are following agreed processes and
that the data collected about patient activity is correct. The
team carry out a number of Data Quality audits each year,
as well as completing audits for the IG Toolkit submission.
The Trust Data Quality Group receive these reports and
where training needs are identified these are referred to
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the appropriate manager. The Trust also includes a review
of waiting times data in its Annual Audit Programme.
Staff responsible for recording Referral to Treatment (RTT)
data within Outpatient Departments and Admissions
offices have both the Trust Access Policy and RTT training
and awareness materials available to support their daily
work. The Trust has an RTT validation team on both sites
who review the regular waiting times reports produced for
operational management.
The risks that exist around the accuracy of waiting time
data relate to the accuracy of the extracts available from
the systems, the accuracy of the data recorded by staff,
the availability of the required data to support pathway
validation and the resources available to complete the
validation actions prior to data submission. All of these
risks are mitigated through the actions detailed above.

Assurance framework

The Board set Corporate Objectives for 2015/16 in May 2015
and the Assurance Framework was developed to provide
the Board with a means of regularly monitoring the risks
to achievement of the Corporate Objectives. The Assurance
Framework sets out:

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

The key aims and objectives of the Trust and the main
risks that could prevent the organisation from
achieving them
Control measures in place to reduce the likelihood of
the risks being realised
The review and assurance mechanisms relating to
their effectiveness
Real (positive) assurances that provide the Board
with evidence that controls are in place and are
being effective
The major gaps in controls and assurances within
these key aims
An action plan that addresses the identified gaps and
assigns responsibility for the reduction of specific risks.

The Integrated Governance Committee and the Board
receive reports on the Assurance Framework at intervals
throughout the year.
In addition to the internal monitoring process described
above, the Trust’s internal auditors carry out an annual
review of the Trust’s internal control arrangements, which
includes a review of the Assurance Framework. This
provides a further objective source of assurance for the
Audit Committee.

Risk control

Risks are reported to the Integrated Governance
Committee, Audit Committee and Trust Board. The Terms
of Reference of the committees give details of the level
of delegated authority from the Trust Board granted
to each committee to enable it to fulfil its specified
duties. Compliance with the Care Quality Commission’s
registration criteria is reported to the Integrated
Governance Committee, and to the Trust Board.
Risks are reviewed at Divisional level through the
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Divisional governance structure. Divisional and Corporate
Directors sign-off risks for their areas on a monthly basis,
to ensure the Risk Register is kept up-to-date and senior
ownership of risks is secured. Action is being taken to
develop and maintain clinical engagement in the risk
management process.
The Infection Control Committee, chaired by the Director
of Infection Prevention and Control, meets on a quarterly
basis. In addition, key infection control indicators are
reported to the Trust Board on a monthly basis as part of
the Trust’s performance review process. This data is also
reported to Divisional Governance teams for local follow
up action. The Trust Board receives an Annual Report on
Infection Control and exception reports as necessary.
Risk Management is embedded into the organisation
in many ways and starts with staff induction. Risk
Management training on a refresher basis is also
available. The culture of the organisation, which always
seeks to learn from incidents that occur, aids the
confident use of the incident reporting procedures
throughout the Trust.

Gaps in the assurance framework

A number of high risks were identified by the Trust’s
Risk Register throughout the year and the appropriate
control measures put in place, resulting in the risks
being mitigated and the required outcome achieved. The
Integrated Governance Committee monitored any gaps
in controls and assurances throughout the year through
review of the Assurance Framework and was satisfied that
gaps identified were responded to and diminished or
eradicated in a timely manner.
Public stakeholders may be affected by risk in relation
to the care and treatment provided by the Trust, the
organisational environment, and in the impact on public
health issues from the way in which the services are
organised and provided. The Trust maintains a Public
Welfare Forum on the University Hospital Lewisham
(UHL) site and a Patient User Group on the Queen
Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) site of independent volunteers
who conduct inspections of wards and departments on
a rotating basis and send their reports to the Trust for
action and comment. Members of the forum are also
involved in service design and re-design and are asked
to become lay representatives on project groups as well
as established committees such as the Equalities, Patient
Experience and Complaints Committees. An example of
the Trust’s work with public stakeholders is the inclusion
of two lay members on the Integrated Governance
Committee and one on the Patient Safety Committee.
Throughout the year, a concerted effort has been made to
keep all stakeholders informed of the key issues affecting
the Trust. Examples include internal ‘All Users’ emails, the
in house magazine, the GP newsletter and open meetings
held by the Chief Executive and Executive Directors for
staff. The Chief Executive, Chairman and other Executive
Directors attend and give presentations at local public
meetings including the Health and Wellbeing Board, the
Healthwatch for each Borough, Local Authority Overview
and Scrutiny Committees, Strategic Partnership Boards
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and other Partnership forums. A series of meetings
with local GP practices has been held, to discuss and
address issues of mutual concern. The Trust membership
recruitment drive has continued in 2015/16 and a
programme of membership engagement activities has
taken place.

Annual quality account

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust published its second
Annual Quality Account in 2015. The Quality Accounts were
assessed by Internal Audit and the report presented to
the Trust’s Audit Committee. The processes for producing
the Quality Accounts include a detailed timetable,
discussion with the Trust Management Executive, Clinical
Leaders Group and the Board itself, with input from the
Healthwatch for each Borough, the Patient Welfare Forum,
the Patient User Group, the Clinical Commissioning Groups
and the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The Account
describes the annual priorities linked to the delivery of
the Trust’s Quality Improvement Strategy.
The Deputy Medical Director (Quality and Safety) as Chair
of the Quality and Safety Committee leads on the Patient
Safety and Clinical Quality Sections. The Director of
Nursing and Clinical Quality co-ordinated the production
of the Accounts.

Assessment of Board effectiveness

In December 2015 the Board commissioned the Good
Governance Institute to assess the operation of the Trust
Board, both internally and in relation to effective team
working and leadership, and in terms of Board integration
with committees and wider organisational governance
arrangements. The Board received feedback from this work
in April and the key output will be the development of an
evidence based Board Development plan.
During the year, two Non-Executive appointments were
made to the Board; one to an additional post created on
formation of the new Trust and one replacing a leaver.
The Board also took part in the NeXT Director scheme
run by the Trust Development Authority, which aimed
to identify people from BAME groups who were almost
board ready, give them a placement within a London
NHS Trust and help them to make the final step up and
into the boardroom. The Trust offered placements to two
participants, each mentored by a Non-Executive Director.
The Trust’s Audit Committee reviews all internal and external
audit reports and monitors implementation of the areas for
development using a formal quarterly tracker report.

In addition, the Board has considered input from other
stakeholders including:
Patients: via the Trust’s Annual General Meeting. The
		 Membership will provide a future invaluable
		 opportunity for systematic feedback on the Board.
Public/Voluntary Sector: The Board has hosted a
		 range of evening events for Trust members
		 and potential members to learn more about the Trust
		 and to interact with Board and staff members. These
		 include presentations by Board members as well as
		 topic specific presentations on items of general health
		 interest such as eating well and stopping smoking.
Staff: The Board is informed of staff views from the
		 Staff Surveys, the staff Friends and Family test, from
		 members of the Trust Management Executive and
		 Clinical Leaders Group, on Board walkabouts and from
		 discussions held by the Director of Workforce &
		 Education with the Trust Joint Partnership Committee.
GPs and Clinical Commissioners: The views of provider
		 and commissioner GPs are of key importance to the
		 Board. Through visits by the Directors of GP
		 Engagement and Business Development, the Trust has
		 engaged with local practices giving them the
		 opportunity to discuss the Trust and its management.
		 The Trust has also met Clinical Commissioning Groups
		 on a number of occasions.

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing
the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors,
clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical
leads within the Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control
framework. I have drawn on the content of the Quality
Report attached to this Annual Report and other
performance information available to me. My review is
also informed by comments made by the external auditors
in their management letter and other reports. I have been
advised on the implications of the result of my review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by
the Board, Audit Committee and Integrated Governance
Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The effectiveness of the system of internal control is
also regularly reviewed by the Trust Board and through
its Committee structure. The Trust Board approves the
Assurance Framework and risk assessment of the Trust’s
principal objectives at the start of each year, and monitors
this through the receipt of reports to the Trust Board.
There is a mechanism in place that enables the Integrated
Governance Committee to highlight significant issues
arising from this detailed review to the Audit Committee
and/or Trust Board, as appropriate. The process described
above to approve, review and monitor the Assurance
Framework has been in place at the Trust from 1 April 2015
to 31 March 2016.
The Audit Committee monitors and assesses both internal
control issues and financial risk. The work of internal
audit feeds into the ongoing process through which the
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effectiveness of the system of internal control is reviewed.
The Trust Management Executive reviews progress against
the Trust’s corporate objectives and any risks attached to
this. In addition, I, as Chief Executive, hold each Executive
Director accountable for performance against agreed
annual objectives. Executive managers, likewise, inform
my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control through the conduct of annual performance
appraisals for all staff against agreed objectives, derived
from the Trust’s principal objectives for the year.
A Quality and Safety scorecard has been in place since
July 2013 and is reviewed by the Integrated Governance
Committee on a monthly basis. A continuous improvement
plan is in place.
Progress on the Assurance Framework will be monitored
by the Integrated Governance Committee who will report
to the formal meetings of the Trust Board throughout the
year. The Audit Committee will be responsible for ensuring
an independent review of the effectiveness of the actions
planned as a result of identified gaps in controls and
assurances. Executive Directors will be responsible for
continually identifying risks arising in their main areas
as defined within the Framework. The Quality and Safety
Committee and the Trust Health and Safety Committee
will review the operational issues relating to clinical
and non-clinical governance and risk, address specific
problems and report on implementation to the Integrated
Governance Committee.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion
for 2015/16 has been received and is
summarised below:

Our opinion is that:
‘Significant with minor improvements’ assurance can be
given on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management
and control.

Significant issues

In common with other acute Trusts, the Emergency
pathway for patients has been exceptionally challenging.
Building work, completed in October 2014, has created
additional capacity on both sites. Since January 2015,
the Trust and partners in the health economy have been
supported by McKinsey to redesign processes to improve
patient flow. These changes will take time to effect lasting
system-wide change and have a full impact. Performance
is monitored by the Trust Management Exucutive and
the Trust Board. A refresh of the work undertaken in
early 2015 has recently been completed and forms the
basis of the Operational Transformation programme for
Acute & Emergency Medicine in 2016. This includes the
development and implementation of a revised clinical
model for acute medicine across both Hospital sites.
Working with system partners, plans are being developed
with the aim of significantly improving the length of stay
of patients with complex discharge needs and ensuring
the better use of out of hospital capacity for patients.
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Performance against the 62-day Cancer pathway is not
at the national standard. One of the more significant
challenges for the Trust in delivering this standard in
a sustainable way, relates to the inter trust transfer
(ITT) standard of 42 days. This requires those patients
who need specialist treatment in a tertiary centre to be
referred by day 42 of their pathway. The Trust continues
to work with partner organisation to improve the
performance locally and across the sector. Commissioners
have also been involved in the development of
performance recovery plans and have funded additional
support in the short term.
The Trust was inspected by the Care Quality Commission in
February 2014 and their report was published in May 2014
with an overall assessment of ‘Requires Improvement’. The
Trust had produced an Improvement Plan detailing all the
actions being implemented following the CQC inspection.
Good progress had been made with the actions and the
improvement plan was closed in July 2015 with the transfer
of proposed major strategic work to the Trust business plan.
In April 2015 the Trust submitted its evidence for JAG
accreditation and was awarded accreditation at QEH.
From 1 April 2016, any outsourcing of patients from a JAG
accredited unit should only be to another JAG accredited
unit, as the JAG cannot provide a badge of quality for a
unit that is not accredited. This is a significant risk for the
Trust and we will work with JAG to agree a time that we can
be compliant with this requirement.
The Trust has had a Quality Assurance visit from London
Cervical Screening Programmes in January 2015, following
which serious concerns were raised about the safety of
the service at QEH. Since then, the Trust has implemented
an action plan to address the concerns raised which was
approved by the Quality Assurance external team and we
await re-inspection in spring 2016.
The Trust relies on King’s College Hospital (KCH) at
Princess Royal University Hospital (PRUH) for the
delivery of an emergency and inpatient urology service
to Greenwich and Bexley residents. Due to pressures in
the Emergency Department at the PRUH, some of this
elective work would be cancelled, increasing waiting
times. A new service model was being considered for the
future. A programme has been agreed with commissioners
and NHS England to repatriate these services back to
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust. This is underway and
is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2016/17.
This will enable the Trust to provide a more robust service
to patients locally and implement stronger governance
arrangements than are currently in place.
The infrastructure within the PFI managed estate on the
QEH site has been an area of risk since integration. In
October 2015 the site experienced a power outage and in
February 2016 there was an incident which resulted in only
one of four medical gas compressors working. The Trust is
working with our PFI partner Meridian Hospital Company
and is being supported by NHS Improvement.
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The Trust reported a deficit of £22.9m in 2015/16 and is
planning a deficit of £20.2m in 2016/17, after additional
sustainability and transformation funding of £16m. The
Trust expects to deliver a further £23m of CIPs which
should offset reduction in transitional support as well
as reducing the recurrent Trust deficit. In the short-term
action is being taken to improve performance of the Cost
Improvement Programme and to reduce the amount of
agency spend through recruitment of permanent staff. In
the medium term, the Trust is actively working to develop
strategies to reduce and then eliminate the deficit.

Conclusion

The Trust has dealt with the significant issues as described
above. There have been no other significant issues.
Signed

Tim Higginson
Chief Executive
Date 31 May 2015
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Audit 0pinion
Independent auditor’s report of
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust

We have audited the financial statements of Lewisham
and Greenwich NHS Trust (the “Trust”) for the year ended
31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 (the “Act”). The financial statements comprise
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted
and adapted by the 2015/16 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (the 2015/16 FReM) as contained in the
Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts 2015/16
(the 2015/16 MfA) and the Accounts Direction issued by
the Secretary of State with the approval of HM Treasury
as relevant to the National Health Service in England (the
Accounts Direction).
This report is made solely to the Directors of Lewisham
and Greenwich NHS Trust as a body, in accordance with
Part 5 of the Act and as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited
Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments
Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Directors of the Trust those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Trust and the Directors of the Trust, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors,
the Accountable Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the ‘Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities’, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Trust’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Scope of the review of arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the
Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2015, as to whether the
Trust had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local
people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined
these criteria as that necessary for us to consider under
the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether
the Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2016, and to report
by exception where we are not satisfied.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook
such work as we considered necessary to form a view on
whether, in all significant respects, the Trust had put in
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As explained in the ‘Statement of the Chief Executive’s
responsibilities as the Accountable Officer of the Trust’, the
Accountable Officer is responsible for the arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use
of the Trust’s resources. We are required under Section 21
(3)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 1 O(a) of the Act to be
satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources and to report our opinion as required
by Section 21 (4)(b) of the Act. We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects
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Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of
		 Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust as at 31 March
		 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year
		 then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with IFRSs
		 as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and
		 adapted by the 2015/16 FReM as contained in the
		 2015/16 MfA and the Accounts Direction.

Opinion on other matters
In our opinion:

the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be
audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as
interpreted and adapted by the 2015/16 FReM as
contained in the 2015/16 MfA and the Accounts
Direction; and
the other information published together with the
		 audited financial statements in the annual report is
		 consistent with the audited financial statements.
		
		
		
		
		

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

We are required to report to you if we are not satisfied that
the Trust has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Basis for qualified value for
money conclusion

The Trust delivered the financial plan agreed with the
NHS Trust Development Authority at the start of the
year, recording a deficit of £22.9 million, after a capital to
revenue transfer of £15 million. This is consistent with its
planned budget deficit of £38 million. This is the second
year in which the Trust has been in deficit. It is planning
for a reduced deficit of £20.2 million for 2016/17.

put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the
year ended 31 March 2016.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where we are required to report by exception if:
in our opinion the governance statement does
		 not comply with guidance issued by the NHS Trust
		 Development Authority; or
we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under
		 section 30 of the Act because we have reason to
		 believe that the Trust, or an officer of the Trust, is
		 about to make, or has made, a decision which involves
		 or would involve the body incurring unlawful
		 expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take
		 a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion,
		 would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or
		 deficiency; or
we issue a report in the public interest under section
		 24 of the Act; or
we make a written recommendation to the Trust under
		 section 24 of the Act.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the
accounts of Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Code
of Audit Practice.

Darren Wells
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed
Auditor
Fleming Way
Manor Royal
Crawley
RH10 9GT
1 June 2016

The Trust’s plan for a return to a balanced financial
position will be part of the South East London
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP), but there
is not currently, an agreed plan in place to return to
financial balance.
These issues are evidence of weaknesses in proper
arrangements for planning finances effectively to support
the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and
maintain statutory functions.

Qualified value for money conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in
November 2015, except for the effects of the matters
described in the basis for qualified value for money
conclusion paragraph, we are satisfied that, in all
significant respects, Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE ACCOUNTABLE
OFFICER OF THE TRUST

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE ACCOUNTS

The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development
Authority has designated that the Chief Executive
should be the Accountable Officer to the. The relevant
responsibilities of Accountable Officers are set out in the
Accountable Officers Memorandum issued by the Chief
Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority. These
include ensuring that:

The directors are required under the National Health
Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial
year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income
and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash
flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors
are required to:

there are effective management systems in place
		 to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the
		 implementation of corporate governance;
value for money is achieved from the resources
		 available to the trust;
the expenditure and income of the trust has been
		 applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and
		 conform to the authorities which govern them;
effective and sound financial management systems
		 are in place; and
annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format
		 directed by the Secretary of State with the approval
		 of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of the
		 state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and
		 the income and expenditure, recognised gains and
		 losses and cash flows for the year.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly
discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of
appointment as an Accountable Officer.
I confirm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Trust’s auditors are
unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought to
have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Trust’s auditors are
aware of that information.
I confirm that the annual report and accounts as a whole
is fair, balanced and understandable and that I take
personal responsibility for the annual report and accounts
and the judgments required for determining that it is fair,
balanced and understandable.

Signed
Chief Executive
Date 31 May 2016
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apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid
		 down by the Secretary of State with the approval of
		 the Treasury;
make judgements and estimates which are reasonable
		 and prudent;
state whether applicable accounting standards
		 have been followed, subject to any material
		 departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.
The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and
to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction
of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and
belief they have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the accounts.
By order of the Board

Chief Executive
Date 31 May 2016

Finance Director
Date 31 May 2016
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for year ended 31 March 2016

Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2016

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016

2015/16
£000
(330,713)
(198,570)
468,508
50,439
(10,336)
50
(19,115)
(29,401)

2014/15
£000
(319,732)
(213,232)
463,736
53,786
(15,442)
48
(31)
(18,751)
(34,176)

(7,345)

(9,401)

Transfers by absorption - gains

-

-

Transfers by absorption - (losses)

-

-

(36,746)

(43,577)

Revenue
Gross employee benefits
Other operating costs
Revenue from patient care activities
Other operating revenue
Operating Surplus/(Deficit)
Investment revenue
Other gains and (losses)
Finance costs
Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year
Public dividend capital dividends payable

Note
8.1
6*
3*
4*
10
11
12

Net Gain/(loss) on transfers by absorption
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Impairments and reversals taken to the
Revaluation Reserve
Net gain/(loss):
- on revaluation of property, plant
		 & equipment
- on revaluation of intangibles
- on revaluation of financial assets
- other gain/(loss)
- on revaluation of available for sale
financial assets
- on pension schemes
- on other pension remeasurements
Reclassification adjustments on disposal of
available for sale financial assests
Total Other Comprehensive Income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Financial performance position
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year
Prior period adjustment to correct errors
and other performance adjustments
IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12
impairments)
Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments)
Adjustments in respect of donated gov't
grant asset reserve elimination
Adjustment re absorption accounting
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit)

31 March
2016

31 March
2016

Note

£000

£000

13*

378,533

376,717

14

19,450

6,411

Investment property

-

-

Other financial assets

-

-

2,988

2,821

400,971

385,949

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Trade and other receivables

18.1

Total Non-current assets
Current Assets
Inventories

17

6,179

5,662

18.1

41,670

42,045

Other financial assets

-

-

Other current assets

-

-

2,064

1,027

49,913

48,734

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

19

Sub-total Current Assets
Non-current assets held for sale

-

(35,187)

21,875
-

(1,183)
-

-

-

21,875
(14,871)

(36,370)
(79,947)

(36,746)
-

(43,577)
-

***

14,608

8,512

****

(819)
90

26,488
95

(22,867)

(8,482)

**

* The prior period comparator has been restated as detailed in Note 6
Operating Expenses & Note 13.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
** The net gain on revaluation of £21,875K arises from the full “fair value”
revaluation of land and buildings which was carried out in accordance with
DH guidance - See Note 13.1 Property Plant and Equipment.
*** The IFRIC 12 adjustment removes the revenue impact of PFI assets
treated as on balance sheet under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as the related costs are not considered part of the Trust’s
operating position for the purposes of the financial performance “breakeven”
measure (Note 32.1). The Trust’s PFI assets include the Riverside building
on the Lewisham Hospital site, QEH buildings and the Toshiba Managed
Equipment Contract.
**** This adjustment is made to the accounting outturn for the purposes of
the financial performance “breakeven” measure. It requires adding back nonIFRIC12 impairments that were included within note 6 – operating expenses.
The notes on pages 47 to 76 form part of this account.

Total Current Assets
Total Assets

-

-

49,913

48,734

450,884

434,683

(64,460)

(59,260)

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

Other liabilities

-

-

Provisions

24

(2,122)

(1,863)

Borrowings

21

(3,673)

(2,301)

-

-

Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan

21

-

-

DH capital loan

21

(787)

(787)

Total current liabilities

(71,042)

(64,211)

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)

(21,129)

(15,477)

Total assets less current liabilities

379,842

370,472

(707)

(757)

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

Other liabilities

-

-

Provisions

24

(3,975)

(4,552)

Borrowings

21

(110,611)

(114,284)

-

-

Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan

21

(29,676)

-

DH capital loan

21

(12,985)

(13,772)

(157,954)

(133,365)

221,888

237,107

Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed:
FINANCED BY:
Public Dividend Capital

182,666

183,014

Retained earnings

*

(121,448)

(84,702)

Revaluation reserve

*

160,607

138,732

Other reserves
Total Taxpayers Equity

63

63

221,888

237,107

* Restated: See Note 13.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The notes on pages 47 to 76 form part of this account.
The financial statements on pages 16 to 76 were approved
by the Board on 31 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by
		
		
Chief Executive
Date 31 May 2016
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity For the year ending 31 March 2016
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
For the year ending 31 March 2016
Operating expenses comprise:
Public Dividend
capital
Balance at 1 April 2015
Prior Period Adjustment to Opening
Balance*
Balance at 1 April 2015 - Restated

Retained earnings Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

Total reserves

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

183,014

(61,875)

139,915

63

261,117

-

(22,827)

(1,183)

-

(24,010)

183,014

(84,702)

138,732

63

237,107

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

(36,746)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property,
plant, equipment

(36,746)
21,875

21,875

Reclassification Adjustments
Permanent PDC received - cash
Permanent PDC repaid in year
PDC written off
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for
the year
Balance at 31 March 2016
Balance at 1 April 2014

6,348

6,348

(6,696)

(6,696)

-

-

(348)

(36,746)

21,875

-

(15,219)

-

182,666

(121,448)

160,607

63

221,888

177,799

(41,125)

175,102

63

311,839

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the
year ended 31 March 2015
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year*

(43,577)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of
property, plant, equipment*
Impairments and reversals

(43,577)
(1,183)

(1,183)

(35,187)

(35,187)

Reclassification Adjustments
New temporary and permanent PDC
received - cash

22,157

22,157

New temporary and permanent PDC
repaid in year

(16,942)

(16,942)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for
the year
Balance at 31 March 2015

5,215

(43,577)

(36,370)

-

(74,732)

183,014

(84,702)

138,732

63

237,107

* Restated - See Note 13.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year
ended 31 March 2016
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016
Note

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Operating surplus/(deficit)

*

(10,336)

(15,442)

Depreciation and amortisation

6

21,049

17,096

Impairments and reversals

15

1,853

26,043

Interest paid

12*

(19,115)

(18,751)

(8,327)

(10,103)

Cash flow from operating activities

PDC Dividend (paid)/refunded
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(517)

(135)

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other
Receivables

1,190

12,721

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables

6,384

(8,104)

Provisions utilised

(700)

(855)

382

(896)

(8,137)

1,574

Increase/(Decrease) in movement in
non cash provisions
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received

10

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment
(Payments) for Intangible Assets

50

48

(12,299)

(21,353)

(4,817)

(1,810)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

(17,066)

(23,115)

Net Cash Inform / (outflow) before Financing

(25,203)

(21,541)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Received

**

6,348

22,157

***

(6,696)

(16,942)

-

4,732

65,500

-

(787)

(472)

(35,824)

-

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of
Finance Leases and On-SoFP PFI and LIFT

(2,301)

(3,008)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

26,240

6,467

Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Repaid
Loans received from DH New Capital Investment Loans
Loans received from DH New Revenue Support Loans

****

Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans
Repayment of Principal
Loans repaid to DH Working Capital Loans/Revenue Support Loans

****

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at
Beginning of the Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at
year end

19

1,027

16,101

2,064

1,027

* Restated - See Note 13.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
** PDC Received capital funding (£6,348K) for IT investment at QEH.
*** PDC Repaid relates to a capital to revenue transfer agreed with DH in order
to carry forward Trust capital cash from the current financial year to 2016-17.
**** The Trust received revenue cash support during the year totalling a
net £29,676K consolidated as a formal Revenue Support Loan from DH. The
presentation of the support in relation to the receipt (£65,500K) and repayment
(£35,824K) reflects the technical process by which temporary support of
£30,000K was converted into a permanent loan of £35,500K and subsequently
repaid alongside other capital to revenue related balances. It should be noted
that the formal loan agreement with DH is for a support totalling £45,200K of
which £35,500K has been utilised and £9,700K the sum of the remaining facility
available.
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1. Notes to the accounts
1. Accounting policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that
the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the
accounting requirements of the Department of Health
Group Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM
Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the DH Group
Manual for Accounts 2015-16 issued by the Department of
Health. The accounting policies contained in that manual
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the
extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the
NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by
the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Manual
for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the
accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate
to the particular circumstances of the trust for the
purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected.
The particular policies adopted by the Trust are described
below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with
items considered material in relation to the accounts.
1.1. Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical
cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories
and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.
1.2. Going concern
IAS 1 requires management to assess, as part of the
accounts preparation process, the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
The Trust has an adjusted retained deficit of £22,867K. As a
consequence of this the Trust received a Revenue Support
Loan from the Secretary of State for £45,200K against
which £29,676K was utilised. It is anticipated that the Trust
will enter in to a similar Revolving Working Capital Facility
arrangement with the DH as last year in order to manage
the deficit funding requirement in 2016-17. The Trust
does not consider that this temporary funding impacts
upon its operational existence as a going concern for the
foreseeable future. There are no plans for the dissolution
of the Trust or any transfer of its services to another
entity and the Trust is continuing with work to identify
and refine efficiency savings to help underpin financial
balance over the long-term. Finally, management is not
aware of any events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern
and has an approved financial plan for 2016-17 which has
been agreed with the TDA. The financial statements have
therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.
1.3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty
In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting policies,
management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions
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are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
1.3.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below) that management has
made in the process of applying the Trust’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
1. The Trust has used component lives information
provided by an independent valuer to depreciate buildings
on a component basis.
1.3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
1.		 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) - PFI buildings
are on the Statement of Financial Position at current
value as determined by an independent professional
valuer on the basis of depreciated replacement cost
(DRC). The associated liability has been included using
the Department of Health (DH) Universal Model.
2.		 The value of assets and liabilities at the year end are
based on opening values with changes applied to reflect
acquisitions, reclassifications, disposals, revaluations,
impairments and transfers during the year as appropriate.
3.		 Outstanding Legal Claims - The value of reported
claims is based on an estimation of the probable
liabilities arising from outstanding legal claims against
the Trust at the year end; having taken professional
legal advice and assessment by appropriate Trust
directors of the likelihood of the successful defence of
the relevant cases.
4. The Trust has estimated provisions for pensions
relating to former staff using information provided by
the NHS pensions Agency at the time of the members’
early retirement. These are updated annually and
changes made where notification is received of the
death of a member and resulting cessation of any
continuing liability or it becomes apparent that the
provision is no longer sufficient to meet the liability.
5. The useful economic life of plant and machinery and
IT equipment has been estimated on a probable life
basis; consistent with actual experience inside the
Trust and across similar NHS provider organisations.
6. QEH Managed Equipment Service (Toshiba) Residual
Interest adjustment (Note 27 Impact of IFRS Treatment
in Current Year): The build up of the deferred asset is
based on:
the projected carrying Net Book Value (NBV) of
		 existing assets plus future additions at the end of
		 the contract.
less the estimated expiry payment for the equipment
		 which the Trust has elected to acquire at the end of
		 the contract in line with the formula agreed under the
		 contract deed of variation (DoV) signed during the year.
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1.4 Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised
when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
The main source of revenue for the trust is from
commissioners for healthcare services. Revenue relating
to patient care spells that are part-completed at the year
end are apportioned across the financial years on the
basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting period
compared to expected total length of stay.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to
be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.
The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost
Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury
compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an
insurer. The Trust recognises the income when it receives
notification from the Department of Work and Pension’s
Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has
lodged a compensation claim. The income is measured at
the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured
individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubtful debts.
1.5 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are
recognised in the period in which the service is received
from employees.
Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions
of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General
Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of
the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme
is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS
bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health
the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional
costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Trust
commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method
of payment.
The Trust has no employees who are members of the Local
Government Superannuation Scheme, which is a defined
benefit pension scheme.
1.6 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the
extent that, the goods or services have been received. They
are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.

48

1.7 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
it is held for use in delivering services or for
administrative purposes;
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to, or service potential will be supplied to the Trust;
it is expected to be used for more than one financial
year;
the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least
£5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250,
where the assets are functionally interdependent,
they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are
anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and
are under single managerial control; or
Items form part of the initial equipping and settingup cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of
their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a
number of components with significantly different asset
lives, the components are treated as separate assets and
depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially
at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. All
assets are measured subsequently at current value.
Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at their revalued amounts, being
the current value at the date of revaluation less any
impairment, subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different
from those that would be determined at the end of the
reporting period. current values are determined as follows:
Land and non-specialised buildings – market value
for existing use
Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost
HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to
depreciated replacement cost valuations based on
modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the
location requirements of the service being provided, an
alternative site can be valued.
Properties in the course of construction for service or
administration purposes are carried at cost, less any
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but
not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at
current value. Assets are revalued and depreciation
commences when they are brought into use.
2015
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Alternative open market valuations are routinely sought
where operational assets are scheduled for imminent
closure and subsequent disposal.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the
revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment
for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure,
in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent
of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation
decrease that does not result from a loss of economic
value or service potential is recognised as an impairment
charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that
there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and,
thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise
from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken
to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond
its original specification, the directly attributable cost
is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores
the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is
capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item
replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
1.8 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without
physical substance, which are capable of sale separately
from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from
contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust; where the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5000.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at current value. Software that is integral to the
operating of hardware, for example an operating system,
is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property,
plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the
operation of hardware, for example application software,
is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on
research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an operating
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internallygenerated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use
the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use it
the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits or service potential
the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the intangible asset and
sell or use it
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during
		 its development
Annual
Report

2015
16

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the criteria above are initially met.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in
which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at current value by reference to an active market, or, where
no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost
(modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant
price increases, as a proxy for current value. Internallydeveloped software is held at historic cost to reflect the
opposing effects of increases in development costs and
technological advances.
1.9 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets
held for sale are not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged
to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant
and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less
any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in
a manner that reflects the consumption of economic
benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated
useful life of an asset is the period over which the Trust
expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential
from the asset. This is specific to the Trust and may be
shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated
useful lives and residual values are
reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes
recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under
finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives if shorter.
The following summarises the remaining useful lives
applied by asset category respectively over which
depreciation has been calculated.
Buildings (excluding Dwellings): 1 to 56 years
Plant and Machinery: 1 to 9 years
Transport: Nil years (fully depreciated)
Information Technology: 1 to 7 years
Furniture and fittings: 1 to 8 years
Internally Generated Software Licences: 2 to 10 years
At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there
is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible noncurrent assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is
indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated to determine whether there has
been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss
of economic value or service potential is recognised as
an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to
the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the
asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses
that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit
should be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
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is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable
amount but capped at the amount that would have been
determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The
reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure
to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and
thereafter to the revaluation reserve.
Impairments are analysed between Departmental Expenditure
Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed Expenditure (AME). This is
necessary to comply with Treasury’s budgeting guidance. DEL
limits are set in the Spending Review and Departments may
not exceed the limits that they have been set.
AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be
reviewed with departments in the run-up to the Budget.
Departments need to monitor AME closely and inform
Treasury if they expect AME spending to rise above
forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that in some areas of
AME inherent volatility may mean departments do not
have the ability to manage the spending within budgets in
that financial year, any expected increases in AME require
Treasury approval.
1.10 Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their
current value on receipt, with a matching credit to
income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired as
described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses
on revaluations, impairments and sales are as described
above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised
only where conditions attached to the donation preclude
immediate recognition of the gain.
1.11 Government grants
The value of assets received by means of a government
grant are credited directly to income. Deferred income is
recognised only where conditions attached to the grant
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
1.12 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly
probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in
its present condition and management is committed
to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and current value less costs to sell. Current value is open
market value including alternative uses.
The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the balance for the
asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained
earnings. For donated and government granted assets,
a transfer is made to or from the relevant reserve to the
profit/loss on disposal account so that no profit or loss is
recognised in income or expenses. The remaining surplus
or deficit in the donated asset or government grant
reserve is then transferred to retained earnings
Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or
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demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for
sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its
economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
it is scrapped or demolished.
1.13 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Trust has applied the key criteria under IAS 17: Leases
to determine the appropriate classification for leases as
either operating or finance leases.
The Trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases
are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease,
at current value or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for
the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognised in calculating the Trust’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives are recognised initially as a liability and
subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building
components are separated and individually assessed as to
whether they are operating or finance leases.
The Trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS trust’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Trust’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
1.14 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies
shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the
government body controls the use of the infrastructure
and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end
of the arrangement as service concession arrangements,
following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12
(which deals with public-to-private service concession
arrangements for the delivery of public services). The Trust
therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of property,
plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it.
The services received under the contract are recorded as
operating expenses.
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The annual unitary payment is separated into the
following component parts, using appropriate estimation
techniques where necessary:
a) Payment for the fair value of services received;
b) Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
c) Payment for the replacement of components of the
asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.
Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded
under the relevant expenditure headings within
‘operating expenses’.
PFI asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and
equipment, when they come into use. The assets are
measured initially at fair value in accordance with the
principles of IAS 17 (which prescribes the appropriate
accounting policies and disclosures to apply in relation
to leases). Subsequently, the assets are measured at
fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with
the Trust’s approach for each relevant class of asset in
accordance with the principles of IAS 16 (which prescribes
the accounting treatment for investments in property,
plant and equipment).
PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI
assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the
same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is
subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in
accordance with IAS 17.
An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the
implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease
liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The element of the annual unitary payment that is
allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the
annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over
the contract term.
An element of the annual unitary payment increase due
to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease.
In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in
the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as
contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance,
this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and
the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Lifecycle replacement
The Trust has not capitalised lifecycle replacement costs
for the PFI building (Riverside and QEH) on the basis that
the costs identified in the PFI provider financial model
cannot be analysed over the following headings with
adequate certainty:
1. Property, plant and equipment
2. Improvement or day-to-day maintenance
However, replacement under the QEH PFI Equipment
contract have been capitalised on the following basis:
Components of the assets replaced by the operator during
the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where
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they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure.
They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the
operator and are measured initially at their fair value.
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated
to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each
year of the contract from the operator’s planned
programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the
lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than
expected, a short-term finance lease liability or
prepayment is recognised respectively.
Where the current value of the lifecycle component
is less than the amount determined in the contract,
the difference is recognised as an expense when the
replacement is provided. If the current value is greater
than the amount determined in the contract, the
difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred
income balance is recognised. The deferred income is
released to the operating income over the shorter of the
remaining contract period or the useful economic life of
the replacement component.
Assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator for
use in the scheme
The Trust has no assets contributed to the operator for
use in the scheme.
Other assets contributed by the NHS trust to
the operator
The Trust did not contribute any assets to the operator
before the PFI building came into use.
1.15 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value using the first-in first out cost formula.
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to
fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.
1.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial
institution repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from
the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of
the Trust’s cash management.
1.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows using
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HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
0 to 5 years inclusive: - 1.55%
6 to 10 years inclusive: - 1.00%
Over 10 years: -0.80%
However, with the exception of provisions for post
employment benefits which have been discounted
at a separate applicable rate of 1.37%, the provisions
disclosed in Note 24 have not been discounted using the
above rates because the expected timing of cash flows is
less than one year.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has
developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and
has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by
it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes
only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily
entailed by the restructuring and not associated with
ongoing activities of the entity.
1.18 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk
pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual
contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all
clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged
to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal
liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the
Trust is disclosed at Note 24.
1.19 Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme
and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk
pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return,
receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The
annual membership contributions, and any excesses
payable in respect of particular claims are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.
1.20 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as
government grant funded intangible assets if they are
not expected to be realised within twelve months, and
otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at
open market value. As the NHS body makes emissions, a
provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from
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deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender
of the allowances. The asset, provision and deferred
income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the
reporting period.
1.21 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is
disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Trust. A
contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies
are disclosed at their present value.
1.22 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Trust becomes
party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case
of trade receivables, when the goods or services have
been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights have expired or the asset has
been transferred.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; held
to maturity investments; available for sale financial assets,
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted
in an active market. After initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using
the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair
value of the financial asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is
recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced directly.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that
the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
1.23 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of
Financial Position when the Trust becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in
the case of trade payables, when the goods or services
have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised
when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability
has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at
historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities
The Trust had no guarantee contract liabilities in place
during the year.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
The Trust had no derivative based financial liabilities.
Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities against the Trust are classified
as ‘Other’.
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, except for loans from Department of Health,
which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net
carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method.
1.24 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of
VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input
tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included
in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where
output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the
amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.25 Foreign currencies
The Trust’s functional currency and presentational
currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign
currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate
ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on
31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either
of these are recognised in the Trust’s surplus/deficit in the
period in which they arise.
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1.26 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on
behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts
since the trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details
of third party assets are given in Note 33 to the accounts.
1.27 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the
Trust. At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC
to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC
is recorded at the value received. As PDC is issued under
legislation rather than under contract, it is not treated as
an equity financial instrument.
An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised
by the Trust, is payable to the Department of Health as
public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated
at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on
the average carrying amount of all assets less liabilities
(except for donated assets and cash balances with the
Government Banking Service). The average carrying
amount of assets is calculated as a simple average of
opening and closing relevant net assets.
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the
Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend
for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant
net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not
revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a
result the audit of the annual accounts.
1.28 Losses and special payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament
would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for
the health service or passed legislation. By their nature
they are items that ideally should not arise. They are
therefore subject to special control procedures compared
with the generality of payments. They are divided into
different categories, which govern the way that individual
cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant
functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis,
including losses which would have been made good
through insurance cover had NHS Trusts not been bearing
their own risks (with insurance premiums then being
included as normal revenue expenditure).
1.29 Subsidiaries
The Trust has no subsidiaries.
The Manual for Accounts requires consolidation of the
Trust’s charitable accounts where the IFRS10 (Consolidated
Financial Statements) control criteria are satisfied.
However, as the total assets of the Charity are less than
0.2% of those of the Trust, and its total income is less
than 0.04% of that of the Trust, the total amounts are
immaterial. IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements)
states that specific disclosure requirements set out in
individual standards or interpretations need not be
satisfied if the information is not material, and on this
basis, the Trust has not consolidated its charitable funds.
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1.30 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have
not yet been adopted
The Treasury FReM does not require the following
Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2015-16.
The application of the Standards as revised would not
have a material impact on the accounts for 2015-16, were
they applied in that year:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, but not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption
is not therefore permitted
IFRS 15 Revenue for Contracts with Customers Application required for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017, but not yet adopted by the
FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but
not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not
therefore permitted.

2. Operating segments

The Trust manages all services and functions as a unified
and fully integrated healthcare provider and, as such,
operates one segment.

3. Revenue from patient care activities
Revenue from patient care activities
2015/16
£000s
NHS Trusts

2014/15
£000s

414

526

NHS England*

68,803

92,849

Clinical Commissioning Groups

363,427

355,241

5,402

4,941

Foundation Trusts
Department of Health
NHS Other (including Public Health England
and Prop Co)
Additional income for delivery of healthcare
services**

10

-

463

122

15,524

-

11,576

7,746

Non-NHS:
Local Authorities
Private patients

130

44

Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)

1,407

695

Injury costs recovery

1,293

1,365

Other
Total Revenue from patient care activities

59

207

468,508

463,736

4. Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue

2015/16
£000s

2014/15
£000s

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

3,235

3,123

Patient transport services**

1,564

1,118

20,693

21,789

Charitable and other contributions to
revenue expenditure - NHS

-

-

Charitable and other contributions to
revenue expenditure -non- NHS

-

-

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions
- Charity

-

-

Support from DH for mergers

-

-

Receipt of Government grants for capital
acquisitions

-

-

Education, training and research

Non-patient care services to other bodies***

3,977

5,916

Income generation (Other fees and charges)

2,571

3,329

Rental revenue from finance leases
Rental revenue from operating leases
Other revenue****

Total Operating Revenue

-

-

2,699

3,151

15,700

15,360

50,439

53,786

518,947

517,522

* This includes £16,800K (£37,600K in 2014-15) revenue support for the
continuing financial implications of the QEH merger in relation to recognised
exceptional running costs (£11,600K) and additional operational services and
reconfiguration (£5,200K).
** This relates to Capital to Revenue transfers with DH for TDA and Trust funded
capital of £8,828K and £6,696K respectively.
*** The prior year comparator has been restated in relation to NHS England
income.
**** This includes £15,600K (£12,700K in 2014-15) financial support provided
as part of the SLHT dissolution arrangements to off-set the additional cost
imposed by the QEH PFI building- Reference the TDA document “Securing
sustainable healthcare for the people of South East London as part of the SLHT
dissolution”.
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7. Operating leases

5. Overseas visitors disclosure
Overseas visitors disclosure
2015/16
£000s

2014/15
£000s

1,407

695

Cash payments received in-year
(re receivables at 31 March 2015)

607

274

Cash payments received in-year
(iro invoices issued 2014-15)

800

421

Income recognised during 2015-16
(invoiced amounts and accruals)

Amounts added to provision for
impairment of receivables
(re receivables at 31 March 2014)*

The Trust has leases for various items of medical
equipment and lease cars. Terms of renewal and purchase
options vary between individual leases.
7.1. Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust as lessee
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust as lessee
2015-16

2014-15

Land

Buildings

Other

Total

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2,250

2,256
-

-

-

Amounts added to provision for impairment
of receivables (iro invoices issued 2014-15)*

568

613

Minimum lease
payments

Amounts written off in-year
(irrespective of year of recognition)

330

413

Contingent rents

-

Sub-lease payments

-

-

2,250

2,256

Payments recognised
as an expense

Total

*The 2014/15 comparitor has been restated form £495k to zero. The balance has
been moved to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued in
2014/15).

Payable:

6. Operating expenses

No later than one year

58

2,133

83

2,274

2,274

Between one and five
years

232

151

80

463

474

Operating expenses

After five years

Operating expenses comprise:

Total

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

427

345

85

62

Supplies and services - clinical

84,183

80,502

Supplies and services - general

3,252

2,143

710

7,651

Establishment

Consultancy services

5,355

5,999

Transport

3,728

1,851

Service charges - ON-SOFP PFIs and other service
concession arrangements

19,132

17,191

Business rates paid to local authorities

998

200

-

1,198

1,294

1,288

2,484

163

3,935

4,042

-

-

Total future sublease
payments expected to
be received:

7.2. Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust as lessor
The Trust has in place a number of operating lease
arrangements under which space within the main hospital
and other sites is rented to third parties; including NHS
and non-NHS organisations. The income from these leases
is shown under rental revenue below.
Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust as lessor

3,489

3,169

29,851

33,949

2015-16

2014-15

Hospitality

81

121

£000

£000s

Insurance

25

99

2,699

3,151

Premises

Legal Fees

123

167

1,753

1,194

79

85

Depreciation

19,162

16,288

Amortisation

1,887

808

Impairments and reversals of property, plant
and equipment*

1,853

26,043

Impairments and Reversals of Receivables
Inventories write down

Internal Audit Fees**

149

147

Audit fees

122

174

Clinical negligence

21,743

13,696

Education and Training

1,290

1,506

Change in Discount Rate

(9)

(7)

Other
Total Operating expenses (excluding employee
benefits)

100

49

198,570

213,232

329,642

318,676

Recognised as revenue
Rental revenue
Contingent rents

-

-

2,699

3,151

No later than one year

2,932

3,166

Between one and five years

6,120

7,541

After five years

10,710

10,710

Total

19,762

21,417

Total
Receivable:

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members
Board members

1,071

1,056

Total Employee Benefits

330,713

319,732

Total Operating Expenses

529,283

532,964

* The prior period comparator has been restated - See Note 13.2 Property, Plant
and Equipment
** This is a new reporting requirement.

Annual
Report

2015
16

55

8. Employee benefits and staff numbers
8.1. Employee benefits

8.3. Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements
2015-16

2014-15

Number

Number

Total Days Lost

51,524

46,847

Total Staff Years

5,555

5,285

9.28

8.86

3

4

£000s

£000s

153

150

Employee benefits
Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure
2015-16

Salaries and wages

Total

Permanently
employed

Other

£000s

£000s

£000s

283,263

221,733

61,530

Social security costs

21,769

19,536

2,233

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA
- Pensions Division

28,341

27,177

1,164

Other pension costs

-

Termination benefits
Total employee benefits
Employee costs capitalised
Gross Employee Benefits excluding
capitalised costs

-

-

27

27

-

333,400

268,473

64,927

2,687

192

2,495

330,713

268,281

62,432

Total

Permanently
employed

Average working Days Lost
Number of persons retired early on ill health
grounds

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued
in the year

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure
2014-15
Other

£000s

£000s

£000s

275,432

213,826

61,606

Social security costs

20,263

18,234

2,029

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA
- Pensions Division

27,261

26,127

1,134
-

Salaries and wages

Other pension costs

-

-

Termination benefits

39

39

-

322,995

258,226

64,769

TOTAL - including capitalised costs
Employee costs capitalised
Gross Employee Benefits excluding
capitalised costs

3,263

411

2,852

319,732

257,815

61,917

8.2. Staff numbers
Staff numbers
Average Staff Numbers
2015-16

2014-15

Total

Permanently
employed

Other

Total

927

765

162

899

-

-

-

-

Administration and estates

1,426

1,149

277

1,491

Healthcare assistants and other
support staff

1,018

783

235

924

Nursing, midwifery and health
visiting staff

2,638

2,090

548

2,547

Nursing, midwifery and health
visiting learners

-

-

-

-

1,122

908

214

1,073

Medical and dental
Ambulance staff

Scientific, therapeutic and
technical staff
Social Care Staff

-

-

-

-

Healthcare Science Staff

-

-

-

-

Other

5

5

-

5

TOTAL

7,136

5,700

1,436

6,939

56

4

52

80

Of the above - staff engaged on
capital projects
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8.4. Exit packages agreed in 2015-16
Exit packages agreed
2015-16
Exit package cost
band (including any
special payment
element)

*Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Cost of compulsory
redundancies

Number of other
departures agreed

Cost of other Total number of exit
departures agreed.
packages

"Total cost of exit
packages

Number

£000s

Number

£000s

Number

£000s

Less than £10,000

-

-

7

25,232

7

25,232

£10,000-£25,000

-

-

1

10,887

1

10,887

£25,001-£50,000

1

26,950

-

-

1

26,950

£50,001-£100,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

£100,001 - £150,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

£150,001 - £200,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

more than £200,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

1

26,950

8

36,119

9

63,069

Exit package cost band (including any special payment element)
2014-15
Less than £10,000

-

-

6

16,424

6

16,424

£10,000-£25,000

-

-

2

22,399

2

22,399

£25,001-£50,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

£50,001-£100,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

£100,001 - £150,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

£150,001 - £200,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

>£200,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

8

38,823

8

38,823

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the agenda for change / Trust policy. Exit costs in
this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs
are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pension schemes. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme
and are not included in the table.
This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. Note: The expense associated with
these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
8.5. Exit packages - other departures analysis
Exit packages - other departures analysis
2015-16

2014-15

Agreements

Total value of agreements

Agreements

Total value of agreements

Voluntary redundancies including
early retirement contractual costs

-

-

-

-

Mutually agreed resignations
(MARS) contractual costs

-

-

-

-

Early retirements in the efficiency
of the service contractual costs

-

-

-

-

Contractual payments in lieu of
notice

8

36

8

39

Exit payments following
Employment Tribunals or court
orders

-

-

-

-

Non-contractual payments
requiring HMT approval

-

-

-

-

Total

8

36

8

39

Non-contractual payments made
to individuals where the payment
value was more than 12 months of
their annual salary

-

-

-

-

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. Note: the expense associated with
these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.
No contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value was more than 12 months’ of their annual salary.
The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

Annual
Report

2015
16

57

8.6. Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions
of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS
Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under
the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales.
They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the
accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised
in the financial statements do not differ materially from
those that would be determined at the reporting date by
a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the
period between formal valuations shall be four years, with
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline
of these follows:
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually
by the scheme actuary (currently the Government
Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting
period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the
previous accounting period in conjunction with updated
membership and financial data for the current reporting
period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust
figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation
of scheme liability as at 31 March 2016, is based on
valuation data as 31 March 2015, updated to 31 March 2016
with summary global member and accounting data. In
undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology
prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and
the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also
been used.

Alternative pension Scheme “NEST”
The Trust had to provide a local pension scheme for staff
who were unable to join the NHS Pension Scheme from 1
July 2013. NEST (National Employer Savings
Trust) was chosen following advice from the Pension
Advisory Service.
The specific characteristics of NEST are as follows:
Contributions to NEST are based on 1% for employees
and 1% for employers.
Retirement age within this scheme is set at 65.
Pensions are based on investment and growth funds.
Employees can pay into these funds directly to top up
their pension.
Pensions can be drawn from age 55.
At retirement employees can choose how they receive
their funds – based on pension pot value.
Cash only – cash payment up to 25% value will be
tax free
Retirement income
Cash and retirement income – cash payment up to
25% will be tax free
Transfer pension – open market
Survivor’s pensions are included as well as
		 death benefits.
Employees can choose to opt out of the scheme.
From October 2017 employers will contribute 2%
From October 2018 employers will contribute 3%
Contributions will be reviewed in 2017.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is
contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales)
Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the
NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies
can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of
liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes
(taking into account their recent demographic experience),
and to recommend contribution rates payable by
employees and employers.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the
NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending
31 March 2012.
The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution
rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health,
with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the
advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee
and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.
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9. Better payment practice code

11. Other gains and losses

9.1. Measure of compliance

Other Gains and Losses

Measure of compliance

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale
(PPE)

-

(31)

233,822

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale
(intangibles)

-

-

72,876

172,982

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets other
then held for sale

-

-

64.02%

73.98%

Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale

-

-

Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange

-

-

Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair
value through the SoCI

-

-

2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

2014-15

Number

£000s

Number

£000s

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices
Paid in the Year

98,945

223,921

113,841

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices
Paid Within Target

36,865

140,660

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices
Paid Within Target

37.26%

62.82%

Non-NHS Payables

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in
the Year

3,353

17,673

3,479

33,018

Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at
fair value through the SoCI

-

-

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid
Within Target

1,348

9,487

1,525

14,179

Change in fair value of investment property

-

-

Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of
financial assets held for sale

-

-

Total

-

(31)

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

890

390

-

1

- main finance cost

11,679

11,557

- contingent finance cost

6,464

6,639

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices
Paid Within Target

40.20%

53.68%

43.83%

42.94%

12. Finance costs

9.2. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest)
		Act 1998

Finance costs

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts
(Interest) Act 1998
2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

Amounts included in finance costs from claims
made under this legislation

2

-

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs
under this legislation

-

-

Total

2

-

Interest
Interest on loans and overdrafts
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:

Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Total interest expense

10. Investment revenue

Other finance costs
Provisions - unwinding of discount

Investment revenue
2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

Total

2

-

19,035

18,587

-

85

80

79

19,115

18,751

Rental revenue
PFI finance lease revenue (planned)

-

-

PFI finance lease revenue (contingent)

-

-

Other finance lease revenue

-

-

Subtotal

-

-

Interest revenue
Bank interest

50

48

Other loans and receivables

-

-

Impaired financial assets

-

-

Other financial assets

-

-

Subtotal

50

48

Total investment revenue

50

48
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13. Property, plant and equipment

13.1. Property plant and equipment - current year
Property, plant and equipment
2015-16
Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2015
Prior Period Adjustment to
Opening Balance
Balance at 1 April 2015 - Restated
Additions of Assets Under
Construction

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
& payments
on account

Plant &
machinery

Transport Information
equipment technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Number

£000s

£000s

£000's

£000's

60,102

306,024

-

14,793

63,982

75

12,986

1,492

459,454

(24,010)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(24,010)

36,092

306,024

-

14,793

63,982

75

12,986

1,492

435,444

-

-

-

5,920

-

-

-

-

5,920

Additions Purchased

-

1,389

-

-

2,986

-

770

-

5,145

Additions - Non Cash Donations
(i.e. physical assets)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions - Purchases from Cash
Donations & Government Grants

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions Leased (including PFI/
LIFT)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Reclassifications

-

1,452

-

(12,844)

250

-

1,033

-

(10,109)

Reclassifications as Held for Sale
and reversals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals other than for sale

-

-

-

-

(30)

(67)

-

-

(97)

Upward revaluation/positive
indexation

(107)

5,583

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,476

Impairment/reversals charged to
operating expenses

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Impairments/reversals charged
to reserves

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers (to)/from Other Public
Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

35,985

314,448

-

7,869

67,188

8

14,789

1,492

441,779

58,727

At 31 March 2016
Depreciation
At 1 April 2015

-

-

-

-

48,751

75

9,037

864

Reclassifications

-

15

-

-

(15)

-

-

-

-

Reclassifications as Held for Sale
and reversals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals other than for sale

-

-

-

-

(30)

(67)

-

-

(97)

Upward revaluation/positive
indexation

-

(16,399)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(16,399)

Impairment/reversals charged to
reserves

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Impairments/reversals charged to
operating expenses

-

1,853

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,853

Charged During the Year

-

14,531

-

-

3,439

-

1,026

166

19,162

Transfers (to)/from Other Public
Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

At 31 March 2016
Net Book Value at 31 March 2016

-

-

-

-

52,145

8

10,063

1,030

63,246

35,985

314,448

-

7,869

15,043

-

4,726

462

378,533

Asset financing:
Owned - Purchased

35,985

117,108

-

7,869

8,965

-

4,724

462

175,113

Owned - Donated

-

382

-

-

123

-

2

-

507

Owned - Government Granted

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Held on finance lease

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

On-SOFP PFI contracts

-

196,958

-

-

5,955

-

-

-

202,913

PFI residual: interests

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total at 31 March 2016

35,985

314,448

-

7,869

15,043

-

4,726

462

378,533
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Revaluation reserve balance for property, plant & equipment
2015-16
Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
& payments
on account

Plant &
machinery

Transport Information
equipment technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Number

£000s

£000s

£000's

£000's

At 1 April 2015

21,887

116,246

-

-

1,652

2

97

31

139,915

Prior Period Adjustment to
Opening Balance*

(1,183)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,183)

Balance at 1 April 2015 - Restated

20,704

116,246

-

-

1,652

2

97

31

138,732

(107)

21,982

-

-

-

-

-

-

21,875

20,597

138,228

-

-

1,652

2

97

31

160,607

Movements (See note 13.3)
At 31 March 2016

* Restated - See Note 13.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Additions to assets under construction in 2015-16
Assets under
construction &
payments on account
£000s
Land

-

Buildings excl Dwellings
Dwellings

959
-

Plant & Machinery

4,961

Balance as at YTD

5,920
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13.2. Property, plant and equipment - prior year
Property, plant and equipment
2014/15
Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2014
Additions of Assets Under
Construction

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
& payments
on account

Plant &
machinery

Transport Information
equipment technology

Furniture &
fittings

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Number

£000s

£000s

£000's

£000's

60,763

372,120

-

12,214

61,771

84

10,810

1,943

519,705

-

-

-

8,226

-

-

-

-

8,226

Additions Purchased

-

9,219

-

-

3,395

-

608

27

13,249

Additions - Non Cash Donations
(i.e. Physical Assets)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions - Purchases from Cash
Donations & Government Grants

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions Leased (including PFI/
LIFT)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Reclassifications

-

616

-

(5,647)

-

-

1,804

-

(3,227)

Reclassifications as Held for Sale
and Reversals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals other than for sale

-

-

-

-

(1,184)

(9)

(236)

(478)

(1,907)

(23,488)

(40,744)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(64,232)

Impairments/negative indexation
charged to reserves*

(1,183)

(44,186)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(45,369)

Reversal of Impairments charged
to reserves

-

8,999

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,999

Transfers (to)/from Other Public
Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

36,092

306,024

-

14,793

63,982

75

12,986

1,492

435,444

Revaluation*

At 31 March 2015
Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

657

25,397

-

-

46,754

81

8,446

1,172

82,507

Reclassifications

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Reclassifications as Held for Sale
and Reversals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposals other than for sale

-

-

-

-

(1,162)

(7)

(232)

(478)

(1,879)

(23,488)

(40,744)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(64,232)

Impairments/negative indexation
charged to operating expenses*

22,835

3,880

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,715

Reversal of Impairments charged
to operating expenses

(4)

(668)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(672)

Charged During the Year

-

12,135

-

-

3,159

1

823

170

16,288

Transfers (to)/from Other Public
Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluation*

At 31 March 2015
Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

-

-

-

-

48,751

75

9,037

864

58,727

36,092

306,024

-

14,793

15,231

-

3,949

628

376,717

Asset financing:
36,092

113,451

-

14,793

9,841

-

3,947

616

178,740

Owned - Donated

Owned - Purchased

-

480

-

-

184

-

2

-

666

Owned - Government Granted

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Held on finance lease

-

-

-

-

28

-

-

12

40

On-SOFP PFI contracts

-

192,093

-

-

5,178

-

-

-

197,271

PFI residual: interests

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total at 31 March 2015

36,092

306,024

-

14,793

15,231

-

3,949

628

376,717

* Prior Period Adjustment (PPA)
The Property, Plant and Equipment prior year comparator (2014-15) has been restated. This follows the revaluation of land and buildings which took into account information about the lease
structure at QEH not considered by the valuer in previous valuation reports. This information showed that, in addition to the usual head-lease and occupational lease arrangement with a PFI
Provider, one of the car parks at QEH was subject to a further intermediate leasehold interest being of 125 years duration at a peppercorn rent.

62

2015
16

Annual
Report

Given that the intermediate lease covers a large
proportion of site and is for a far longer period than
the PFI arrangement, the valuer took the view that
this fundamentally changed the nature of the Trust’s
interest as whilst the Trust is in beneficial occupation
of the buildings at QEH, it does not have control of the
land until the intermediate lease expires. As a result,
the underlying land value has been deferred until lease
expiry. This produces a significantly lower land value
when compared to our previous valuations, where the
land valued had not been deferred.
The revaluation reserve has been reduced by £1,183K
as a consequence of the downward revaluation of
£24,010K with the remaining £22,827K being charged as an
impairment to retained earnings.
13.3. Property, plant and quipment
Revaluation
Land and Buildings Summary
An interim valuation of all land and buildings has been
carried out as permitted under DH guidance.
The Trust appointed Montagu Evans (ME), a professional
firm of independent valuers, to carry out the interim
valuation in order to assess the fair value of land and
building assets at 31 March 2016 on a similar Modern
Equivalent Assets (MEA) basis as in previous years.
As an interim valuation ME did not inspect the properties
on this occasion but did work with the Trust in updating
floor area details and any changes in use across each of
the sites.
Notwithstanding the downward revaluation of land at
QEH in respect of the intermediate leasehold interest (125
years) which has been put through as a PPA, the result
of the interim valuation was an in year rise in the overall
value of land and buildings owned by the Trust of which
is consistent with the general rise in building costs as
reflected in the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS)
build cost and location adjustment indices.
It should be noted that, within the underlying valuation
ME have, also took into consideration and applied
assumptions covering the existing use, clinical and nonclinical space requirements and land requirements in
keeping with MEA principles. However, in relation to the
alternative location concept, ME have not adopted this
approach and have again made their land valuations on
the basis of the existing hospital locations.

Basis of valuations
In the preparation of the valuation under IFRS, Montagu
Evans have had regard to the Standards and in particular,
reference to the following:
IVSC: International Valuation Application 1 – Valuation
for Financial Reporting;
IVSC: International Valuation Application 3 –
Valuations for Public Sector Assets for Financial
Reporting;
RICS: Valuation Standard VPS4 – Bases of Value;
RICS: Valuation Standard UKVS1 – Valuation of Real
Property for Financial Statements;
RICS: UK Guidance Note UKGN2 – Depreciated
Replacement Cost Method of Valuation for
		Financial Reporting.
Property valuations undertaken under IFRS require the
statement of assets at Fair Value. Within the UK, assets
should be valued having regard to one of the four methods
of valuation defined by the RICS for valuations for inclusion
in financial methods of valuation defined by the RICS for
valuations for inclusion in financial statements.
Market Value for assets where a market exists and
comparisons can be considered;
Existing Use Value where the property is not
specialised and is owner occupied;
Existing Use Value for Social Housing where the property
provides residential staff accommodation;
Depreciated Replacement Cost where no market exists
for a property, which may be rarely sold or it is a
specialised asset.
Montagu Evans noted that the Trust portfolio does not
include any investment properties or assets held for sale
and, as such, the Market Value basis of valuation has not
been used on this occasion. Similarly the Trust does not
own any key worker accommodation and as such, the
Existing Use Value for Social Housing has not been used.
However, the remaining two basis of valuation, which are
summarised below, are relevant to the nature of the Trust’s
portfolio and have been adopted where appropriate.
(a) Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC)
- Specialised Assets:
The DRC Method of Valuation for Financial Reporting is
set out in UK Guidance Note UKGN2, prepared by the RICS,
within which DRC is defined as;
“The current cost of replacing an asset with its modern
equivalent asset less deductions for physical deterioration
and all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.”
Valuations based on DRC are only to be used for valuing
specialised property that is owner occupied for inclusion
in financial statements. We have used DRC as the basis of
valuation for all of the specialised assets owner occupied
by the Trust.
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As a result, the value of land at QEH as at 31 March 2014
was reduced by £24,010K in valuation report from Montagu
Evans. The impact of this change has been reflected in this
note and primary statements as a PPA.

(b) Existing Use Value (EUV) - Non Specialised Assets:
Within the RICS Valuation – Professional Standards
(January 2014 edition) Existing Use Value is defined as;
The estimated amount for which an asset or liability
should exchange on the valuation date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing and where the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion
– assuming that the buyer is granted vacant possession
of all parts of the asset required by the business, and
disregarding any potential alternative uses and any other
characteristics of the asset that would cause its market
value to differ from that needed to replace the remaining
service potential at least cost.

(b) Current year
The primary outcome of the interim valuation exercise
in-year is that the value of land has reduced by £107K and
buildings increased by £21,982K which gave rise to:
A net upward revaluation of £20,022K.
A net impairment charge to expenditure of £1,853K
from reductions in the value of assets not matched by
positive revaluation reserve balances.
A net increase to the revaluation reserve of £21,875K.

Valuations based on EUV are only to be used for valuing
non-specialised property that is owner occupied for
inclusion in financial statements. We have used EUV as the
basis of valuation for the following non-specialised asset
owner occupied by the Trust:

Asset disposals
A number of aged and low value assets have been
disposed of during the year due to obsolescence or being
surplus to requirement.
These were all fully depreciated and of nil net book value. No
sale receipts were received for any of the assets disposals.

“In reporting EUV capital values, we have stated the
valuation on a gross basis, namely before deduction
of any purchaser’s costs or disposal costs that may be
traditionally incurred in a sale of the asset. This is in
keeping with the requirements of the FReM and IFRS.”

Donated assets
No donated assets were received during the year.

Revaluation
Land and buildings
The table below provides a summary of the valuation
basis for all Trust land and buildings:
Revaluation
Land

Buildings

Land

Buildings

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Location

Valuation Basis

Lewisham Hospital

DRC

DRC

EUV

EUV

Queen Elizabeth
Hospital

DRC

DRC

EUV

EUV

Honour Oak Health
Centre

DRC

DRC

-

-

Lee Health Centre

DRC

DRC

-

Marvels Lane Clinic

DRC

DRC

-

-

Sydenham Green
Health Centre

DRC

DRC

-

-

-

-

EUV

EUV

Kaleidoscope Centre

Accounting outcomes
(a) Prior Year Adjustment (PPA)
As part of the interim valuation ME gave consideration to
new information relating to an additional the intermediate
lease of 125 years on areas of land at QEH. The significance
of which being that, that the Trust will not have control of
the entire site until the expiry of the 125 year lease which
is long after the main head-lease and occupational lease
arrangement with a PFI Provider has come to an end.
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14. Intangible non-current assets

14.1. Intangible non-current assets
prior year

14.1. Intangible non-current assets

Intangible non-current assets prior year

Intangible non-current assets 2015-2016
Total
£000s
At 1 April 2015
Additions Purchased

11,614
4,817

Additions Internally Generated

-

Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)

-

Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations and Government
Grants

-

Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications

10,109

Reclassified as Held for Sale and Reversals

-

Disposals other than by sale

-

Upward revaluation/positive indexation

-

Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses

-

Impairments/reversals charged to reserves

-

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT

-

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting

-

At 31 March 2016

26,540

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014

6,600

Additions - purchased

1,810

Additions - internally generated

-

Additions - donated

-

Additions - government granted

-

Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications

At 1 April 2015

5,203

Reclassifications

-

Reclassified as Held for Sale and Reversals

-

Disposals other than by sale

-

Upward revaluation/positive indexation

-

Impairment/reversals charged to reserves

-

Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses

-

Charged During the Year

1,887

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on authorisation as FT

-

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting

-

At 31 March 2016
Net Book Value at 31 March 2016

7,090
19,450

Asset Financing: Net book value at 31 March 2016 comprises:
Purchased

19,450

Donated

-

Government Granted

-

Finance Leased

-

On-balance Sheet PFIs

-

Total at 31 March 2016

19,450

3,227

Reclassified as held for sale

-

Disposals other than by sale

(23)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation

-

Impairments

-

Reversal of impairments

-

Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under
Absorption Accounting

-

At 31 March 2015

11,614

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014
Reclassifications

Amortisation

Total
£000s

4,413
-

Reclassified as held for sale

-

Disposals other than by sale

(18)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation

-

Impairments charged to operating expenses

-

Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses
Charged during the year
Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption
Accounting

808
-

At 31 March 2015

5,203

Net book value at 31 March 2015

6,411

Net book value at 31 March 2015 comprises:
Purchased

6,411

Donated

-

Government Granted

-

Finance Leased

-

On-balance Sheet PFIs

-

Total at 31 March 2015

6,411

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible n
on-current assets
At 1 April 2015

-

Movements (specify)

-

At 31 March 2016

-
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15. Analysis of impairments and
reversals recognised in 2015-16

16. Capital commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise
included in these financial statements:

Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in
2015-16

Investment Revenue

2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

Total
£000s

£000s

£000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals
taken to SoCI

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations

-

Over-specification of assets

-

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction

-

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

-

Unforeseen obsolescence

-

Loss as a result of catastrophe

-

Other

-

Changes in market price

1,853

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

1,853

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed
to SoCI

1,853

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL

-

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME

1,853

Overall Total Impairments

1,853

Total

1,957

-

661

61

2,618

61

The Trust has made contractual agreements for property,
plant and equipment with external providers for £1,801K
for additional theatre capacity and £156K for installation
of a new gas service.
The Trust has also made contractual agreements with
external providers for £287K in relation to the Trust’s
Virtual Patient Record (VPR) system.

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments:
amount charged to SOCI - DEL

-

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset
Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL

-

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
2015-16
Property Plant and
Equipment

Intangible Assets

Financial Assets

Non-Current Assets
Held for Sale

Total

Number

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Impairments and reversals taken to
SoCI

-

-

-

-

Loss or damage resulting from normal
operations

-

-

-

-

-

Over-specification of assets

-

-

-

-

-

Abandonment of assets in the course of
construction

-

-

-

-

-

Total charged to Departmental
Expenditure Limit

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unforeseen obsolescence

-

-

-

-

-

Loss as a result of catastrophe

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Changes in market price

Other

1,853

-

-

-

1,853

Total charged to Annually Managed
Expenditure

1,853

-

-

-

1,853

Total Impairments of Property, Plant
and Equipment changed to SoCI

1,853

-

-

-

1,853

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL

-

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL

-
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17. Inventories
Inventories
Drugs

Consumables

Work in
Progress

Energy

Loan
Equipment

Other

Total

Of which
held at NRV

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2,541

2,943

-

178

-

-

5,662

-

36,764

16,729

-

-

-

-

53,493

-

(36,894)

(16,003)

-

-

-

-

(52,897)

-

(79)

-

-

-

-

-

(79)

-

Reversal of write-down previously
taken to SOCI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust
on authorisation as FT

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers (to)/from Other Public
Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,332

3,669

-

178

-

-

6,179

-

Balance at 1 April 2015
Additions
Inventories recognised as an
expense in the period
Write-down of inventories
(including losses)

Balance at 31 March 2016

18. Trade and other receivables

18.2. Receivables past their due date but not impaired

18.1. Trade and other receivables
Current
31 March
2016
NHS receivables - revenue
NHS receivables - capital

Non-current

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

20,784

23,403

-

-

-

-

-

-

NHS prepayments and
accrued income

10,350

5,585

-

-

Non-NHS receivables revenue

5,491

904

-

-

Non-NHS receivables capital

-

-

-

-

3,857

9,312

2,988

2,821

Non-NHS prepayments and
accrued income
PDC Dividend prepaid to DH

1,281

299

(4,001)

(2,589)

-

-

VAT

2,107

3,256

-

-

Current/non-current
part of PFI and other PPP
arrangements prepayments
and accrued income

1,753

1,718

-

-

Provision for the
impairment of receivables

Interest receivables

-

-

-

-

Finance lease receivables

-

-

-

-

Operating lease receivables

-

-

-

48

157

-

-

Total

41,670

42,045

2,988

2,821

Total current and non
current

44,658

44,866

Other receivables

Included in NHS
receivables are prepaid
pension contributions:

-

The great majority of trade is with clinical commissioning groups (CCGs). As
CCGs are funded by government to buy NHS patient care services and, as such,
no credit scoring of them is cinsidered necessary as the debt is low risk.

2015
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31 March 2015

£000s

£000s

By up to three months

16,179

7,586

By three to six months

4,438

3,882

By more than six months
Total

7,166

3,107

27,783

14,575

18.3. Provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at 1 April 2015

2015-16
£000s

2014-15
£000s

(2,589)

(5,344)

Amount written off during
the year

341

3,949

Amount recovered during
the year

-

-

(1,753)

(1,194)

Transfers to NHS
Foundation Trust on
authorisation as FT

-

-

Transfers (to)/from Other
Public Sector Bodies under
Absorption Accounting

-

-

(4,001)

(2,589)

(Increase)/decrease in
receivables impaired

Balance at 31 March 2016

* Receivables impaired during the year comprises £1,616K relating to outstanding sales ledger
invoices and £137K Injury Cost Recovery balances notified by the Compensation Recovery Unit
(Department of Work and Pensions).

The amount impaired during the year is calculated in
accordance with defined aged debt profile risk criteria
applied consistently to all Non NHS outstanding balances
as follows:
Outstanding Debt Balances - Age Profile (Days)
Overseas visitors

Provision
100%

All Other
1 - 60

0%

61 - 90

50%

91 - 180
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31 March 2016

75%

181 - 360

100%

Over 360

100%

67

Outstanding Injury cost recovery balances have been
impaired at 21.99% of total notified income in line with DH
guidance; which is up 3.09% on last year (18.9%).

21. Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Current

19. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

Opening balance

1,027

16,101

Net change in year

1,037

(15,074)

2,064

1,027

Closing balance

Cash with Government Banking Service

2,050

1,010

-

-

14

17

Liquid deposits with NLF

-

-

Current investments

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of
financial position

2,064

1,027

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service

-

-

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks

-

-

2,064

1,027

48

36

-

-

Commercial banks
Cash in hand

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of
cash flows
Third Party Assets - Bank balance
(not included above)
Third Party Assets - Monies on deposit

Trade and other payables
Current
31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

6,174

6,434

-

-

-

-

-

-

NHS accruals and
deferred income

6,855

11,852

-

-

Non-NHS payables revenue

29,182

25,928

-

-

Non-NHS payables capital

728

1,962

-

-

14,656

9,811

707

757

Non-NHS accruals and
deferred income
Social security costs
PDC Dividend payable
to DH
Accrued Interest on DH
Loans

3,024

2,635

-

-

84
-

-

Tax

3,230

114

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other

527

524

-

-

Total

64,460

59,260

707

757

65,167

60,017

Total payables (current
and non-current)

68

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Bank overdraft Government Banking
Service

-

-

Bank overdraft commercial banks

-

-

787

787

42,661

13,772

-

-

-

-

Loans from Department
of Health *
PFI liabilities:
Main liability**

3,673

2,284

110,611

114,284

Lifecycle replacement
received in advance

-

-

-

-

Finance lease liabilities

-

17

-

-

Other (describe)
Total
Total borrowings (current
and non-current)

-

-

-

-

4,460

3,088

153,272

128,056

157,732

131,144

Borrowings/Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:
31 March 2016
DH

Other

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s
4,460

787

3,673

1 - 2 Years

1,576

7,885

9,461

2 - 5 Years

32,040

9,190

41,230

9,045

93,536

102,581

43,448

114,284

157,732

TOTAL

* This is borrowings from the Department of Health in the form of existing Capital Investment
Loans (CIL) and new Revenue Support Loan (RSL) funding as follows:
- CIL of £9,355K relating to the construction of the Urgent Care Centre completed in April
2012.
- CIL of £4,417K relating to the creation of additional “Winter Pressure” ward capacity in
2014-15.
- RSL of £29,676K relating to revenue cash support received in year
- as detailed in the Statement of Cash Flow (SoCF).
** The liabilities relate to PFI assets include the Riverside building on the Lewisham Hospital
site and QEH buildings.

22. Deferred income
Deferred income
Current

Opening balance at
1 April 2015

VAT
Payments received on
account

31 March
2015

Over 5 Years

Non-current

31 March
2016

NHS payables - capital

31 March
2016

0-1 Years

20. Trade and other payables

NHS payables - revenue

31 March
2015

Loans from other entities

Made up of

Non-current

31 March
2016

Deferred revenue addition

Non-current

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

4,505

4,251

777

830

5,413

4,505

-

-

(4,505)

(4,251)

(70)

(53)

Current deferred Income at
31 March 2016

5,413

4,505

707

777

Total deferred income
(current and non-current)

6,120

5,282

2015
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23. Finance lease obligations as lessee
Finance lease obligations as lessee
Minimum lease
payments
Amounts payable under
finance leases (Other)

Present value of
minimum lease
payments

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Within one year

-

17

-

17

Between one and five
years

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17

Current borrowings

-

17

Non-current borrowings

-

-

-

17

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

Finance leases as lessee

£000s

£000s

Future Sublease
Payments Expected to be
received

-

-

Contingent Rents
Recognised as an
Expense

-

-

After five years

-

-

Less future finance
charges

-

-

Minimum Lease
Payments/Present
value of minimum lease
payments

-

17

Included in:

24. Provisions
Provisions
2015-16
Total

Early
Departure
Costs

Legal
Claims

Restructuring

Continuing
Care

Equal Pay
(incl. Agenda
for Change

Other

Redundancy

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

-

£000s

£000s

£000s

Balance at 1 April 2015

6,415

4,306

1,170

-

-

-

939

-

Arising during the year

726

1

663

-

-

-

62

-

Utilised during the year

(700)

(594)

(5)

-

-

-

(101)

-

Reversed unused

(415)

0

(389)

-

-

-

(26)

-

Unwinding of discount

80

66

-

-

-

-

14

-

Change in discount rate

(9)

(7)

-

-

-

-

(2)

-

Transfers to NHS Foundation
Trusts on being authorised as FT

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers (to)/from other public
sector bodies under absorption
accounting

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,097

3,772

1,439

-

-

886

-

No Later than One Year

2,122

595

1,439

-

-

-

88

-

Later than One Year and not later
than Five Years

2,642

2,379

-

-

-

-

263

-

Later than Five Years

1,333

798

-

-

-

535

-

Balance at 31 March 2016
Expected Timing of Cash Flows:

-

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:
As at 31 March 2016

374,797

As at 31 March 2015

187,491

Early Departure “Pensions “costs relating to Other Staff are on-going and none are capitalised.
Legal Claims (£1,439K) are based on an assessment of all outstanding cases by solicitors acting on behalf of the Trust.
Other Provisions (£886K) comprises Injury Benefits of £799K and Employee, Public Liability claims of £87K which are
handled by the NHS Litigation Authority.
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25. Contingencies

Queen Elizabeth Hospital Building
QEH

Contingencies
31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s

Contingent liabilities

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

No Later than One Year

15,625

13,245

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years

64,963

64,127

181,064

197,520

Later than Five Years

NHS Litigation Authority legal claims

-

-

Employment Tribunal and other employee related
litigation

-

-

Subtotal
Total

-

-

Other

Redundancy

(28)

(61)

Net value of contingent liabilities

(28)

(61)

Contingent assets

-

-

Net value of contingent assets

-

-

Contingent assets

The 2015-16 contingent liability of £28K (2014-15 £61K)
relates to employee and public liability claims handled by
the NHS Litigation Authority.

26.PFI and LIFT - additional information
The information below is required by the Department of
Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts
Charges to operating expenditure and future
commitments in respect of ON SOFP PFI

Less: Interest Element

261,652

274,892

(193,249)

(205,747)

68,403

69,145

The PFI contract transferred to the Trust under the QEH
merger was entered into in January 2001 for 60 years. The
contract is with Meridian Hospital Company PLC for the
supply of the QEH hospital premises, maintenance and
other site related services.
Under the contract, the rights and privileges of ownership
of the Hospital will transfer to the NHS after 30 years
(October 2030) and there is the option to terminate the
concession to provide Facilities Management services from
the PFI contractor at 30 and 45 years.
The Trust retains the freehold to the land on which the
hospital is based. A head lease to the land was granted to
Meridian Hospital Company PLC for a period of 125 years
under the contract.
Riverside Building
UHL

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

-

-

Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to
operating expenses in year

19,132

17,191

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years

118,687

125,371

Total

19,132

17,191

Subtotal

151,137

157,483

(105,256)

(110,060)

45,881

47,423

Total charge to operating expenses in year - Off
SoFP PFI

No Later than One Year

Less: Interest Element
Payments committed to in respect of service
element of on SOFP PFI

Total

No Later than One Year

17,698

19,014

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years

70,869

68,863

Later than Five Years

240,829

262,727

Total

329,396

350,604

The estimated annual payments in future years are
expected to be materially different from those which the
Trust is committed to make during the next year. The likely
financial effect of this is:
Imputed “finance lease” obligations for on SOFP PFI
contracts due
All PFI Schemes

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

No Later than One Year

21,912

19,591

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years

91,126

89,893

Later than Five Years

299,751

322,891

Subtotal

412,789

432,375

(298,505)

(315,807)

114,284

116,568

Less: Interest Element
Total

70

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

6,287

6,346

26,163

25,766

The existing PFI contract for the Riverside building was
entered into in July 2004 and had a term of 33 years (3
years construction and 30 years operational). Ownership
of the Riverside building will transfer to the Trust at the
end of the contract term.
The Riverside building is treated as an asset of the Trust
under IFRIC 12; which applies to public-to-private service
concession arrangements to the extent that the Trust:
Controls or regulates what services the operator must
provide within the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them, and at what price
Controls (through ownership, beneficial entitlement
or otherwise) any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.
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The net impact for the current year is summarised below:

QEH Managed Equipment Service - Toshiba
QEH MES
2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

Impact of IFRS treatment - current year
Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g
PFI / LIFT)

No Later than One Year

-

-

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years

-

-

Later than Five Years

-

-

Subtotal

-

-

Depreciation charges

8,888

7,898

Less: Interest Element

-

-

Interest Expense

18,143

18,196

Total

-

-

Impairment charge
- AME

2,672

(445)

Impairment charge
- DEL

-

-

The PFI contract transferred to the Trust under the QEH
merger. The contract is with Toshiba Medical Systems for
the supply, maintenance and replacement of medical
equipment at QEH and was entered into in September
2001 for 15 years. An extension of one year was added to
the contract taking it to September 2017.

1,753

1,719

2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

No Later than One Year

3,673

2,284

Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years

17,075

16,154

93,536

98,130

114,284

116,568

Total Number of on PFI contracts

3

3

Number of on PFI contracts which individually
have a total commitments value in excess of
£500m

-

-

Total

Income

Expenditure

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

19,132
-

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts

3,118
-

51,953

-

Total Number of off PFI contracts

-

Number of off PFI contracts which individually
have a total commitments value in excess of
£500m

-

27. Impact of IFRS treatment - current year
The information below is required by the Department of
Heath for budget reconciliation purposes.

In accounting for finance leases the Trust incurred net
additional costs which would not apply under UKGAAP.
The additional costs come about largely because the residual
interest charge from I&E to capital does not apply under IFRS
and the depreciation charge to I&E being greater, as a rule,
than the annual debt repayment element that it replaces.

3,637
-

46,477

37,345

37,965

14,608

8,512

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure
2015-16

2,004

1,927

UK GAAP capital
expenditure 201516 (Reversionary
Interest)

4,253

2,806

Queen Elizabeth Hospital Building
Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP
under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)
£000s
Depreciation
charges
Interest Expense

Number of off SOFP PFI Contracts

17,191
-

Revenue
consequences of
PFI / LIFT schemes
under UK GAAP /
ESA95 (net of any
sublease revenue)
Net IFRS change
(IFRIC12)

Present Value Imputed “finance lease” obligations for
on SOFP PFI contracts due

Later than Five Years

Expenditure

Impact on PDC
dividend payable
Total IFRS
Expenditure (IFRIC12)

2014-15

Income

Other Expenditure
Revenue Receivable
from subleasing

Although the Trust is showing zero obligations in relation
to the Toshiba MES scheme, the trust does hold a
prepayment, details of which are below;
Current / non-current part of PFI and other PPP
arangements prepayments and accrued income

2015-16
All PFI Schemes

£000s

£000s

£000s

5,879

5,226

12,389

12,748

Impairment charge
- AME

2,672

(445)

Impairment charge
- DEL

-

-

Other Expenditure
Revenue Receivable
from subleasing

15,240
-

Impact on PDC
dividend payable
Total IFRS
Expenditure
(IFRIC12)

13,622
-

2,254
-

38,434

2,957
-

34,108

Revenue
consequences of
PFI / LIFT schemes
under UK GAAP /
ESA95 (net of any
sublease revenue)

26,756

26,283

Net IFRS change
(IFRIC12)

11,678

7,825

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure
2015-16
UK GAAP capital
expenditure 201516 (Reversionary
Interest)
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-

1,616

1,616
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Riverside Building

Revenue costs of IFRS12 compared with ESA10

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP
under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)
£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Depreciation charges

1,782

1,601

Interest Expense

4,701

4,731

Impairment charge - AME

-

Impairment charge - DEL

2,110

Other Expenditure
Revenue Receivable from
subleasing

-

-

7,328

Net IFRS change (IFRIC12)

1,895

-

£000s

-

Interest Expense

18,143

-

Impairment charge - AME

2,672

2,094

Impairment charge - DEL

-

Other Expenditure
462

9,223

Revenue consequences of PFI
/ LIFT schemes under UK GAAP
/ ESA95 (net of any sublease
revenue)

£000s
8,888

630

Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12)

2014-15
Income/
Expenditure
ESA 10

Depreciation charges

-

Impact on PDC dividend payable

2015-16
Income/
Expenditure
IFRIC 12

8,888
7,247

Service Charge
Lifecycle
Impact on PDC Dividend Payable
Total Revenue Cost under IFRIC12 vs ESA10
Revenue Receivable from subleasing

1,641

Net Revenue Cost/(income) under IDRIC12
vs ESA10

19,132

37,345

3,118
51,953

37,345

-

-

51,953

37,345

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure 2015-16
UK GAAP capital expenditure
2015-16 (Reversionary Interest)

-

-

1,024

1,024

QEH Managed Equipment Service - Toshiba
Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP
under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)
£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Depreciation
charges

1,227

1,071

Interest Expense

1,053

717

Impairment charge
- AME

-

-

Impairment charge
- DEL

-

-

Other Expenditure
Revenue Receivable
from subleasing
Impact on PDC
dividend payable
Total IFRS
Expenditure
(IFRIC12)

1,782
-

1,475
-

234
4,296

218
-

3,481

Revenue
consequences of
PFI / LIFT schemes
under UK GAAP /
ESA95 (net of any
sublease revenue)

3,261

4,435

Net IFRS change
(IFRIC12)

1,035

(954)

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure
2015-16
UK GAAP capital
expenditure 201516 (Reversionary
Interest)

72

2,004

1,927

1,613

166

28.Financial instruments

28.1.Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure
of the role that financial instruments have had during
the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces
in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing
service provider relationship that the Trust has with
commissioners and the way those commissioners are
financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of
financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial
instruments play a much more limited role in creating or
changing risk than would be typical of listed companies,
to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply.
The NHS organisation has limited powers to borrow or
invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities
are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather
than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in
undertaking its activities.
The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried
out by the finance department, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust’s standing financial instructions
and policies agreed by the board of directors. Trust treasury
activity is subject to review by the Trust’s internal auditors.
Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the
great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being
in the UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas
operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to
currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The Trust borrows from government for capital
expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by
the strategic health authority. The borrowings are for
1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets,
and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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29. Events after the end of the
reporting period

Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trust’s revenue comes from
contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as
at 31 March 2016 are in receivables from customers, as
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

There were no events that had a material effect on the
accounts after the end of the reporting period.

30. Related party transactions

Liquidity risk
The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts
with primary care Trusts, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament . The Trust funds
its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its
prudential borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore,
exposed to significant liquidity risks.

During the year none of the Department of Health
Ministers, Trust Board members or members of the key
management staff, or parties related to any of them, has
undertaken any material transactions with Lewisham and
Greenwich NHS Trust.

28.2. Financial assets
Financial Assets
At ‘fair
value
through
profit and
loss’

Loans and
receivables

Available
for sale

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Embedded derivatives

-

-

-

-

Receivables - NHS

-

20,784

-

20,784

Receivables - non-NHS

-

1,538

-

1,538

Cash at bank and in hand

-

2,064

-

2,064

Other financial assets

-

-

-

-

Total at 31 March 2016

-

24,386

-

24,386

Embedded derivatives

-

-

-

-

Receivables - NHS

-

23,403

-

23,403

Receivables - non-NHS

-

(1,528)

-

(1,528)

Cash at bank and in hand

-

1,027

-

1,027

Other financial assets

-

-

-

-

Total at 31 March 2015

-

22,902

-

22,902

28.3. Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities
At ‘fair value
through profit
and loss’

Other

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

Embedded derivatives

-

-

-

NHS payables

-

6,174

6,174

Non-NHS payables

-

30,437

30,437

Other borrowings

-

43,448

43,448

PFI & finance lease obligations

-

114,284

114,284

Other financial liabilities*

-

-

-

Total at 31 March 2016

-

194,343

194,343

Embedded derivatives

-

-

-

NHS payables

-

6,434

6,434

Non-NHS payables

-

28,414

28,414

Other borrowings

-

14,559

14,559

PFI & finance lease obligations

-

116,568

116,568

Other financial liabilities*

-

17

17

Total at 31 March 2015

-

165,992

165,992

* Other financial liabilities relate to future commitments included in provisions
under Note 24 relating to Liability to the Third Party Scheme and Property Expenses.

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.
During the year Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust has
had a significant number of material transactions with
the Department, and with other entities for which the
Department is regarded as the parent Department.
For example:
Department of Health
HM Revenue and Customs
London Borough of Lewisham
Royal Borough of Greenwich
Bexley CCG
Bromley CCG
Croydon CCG
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley CCG
Greenwich CCG
Lambeth CCG
Lewisham CCG
Merton CCG
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust
Southwark CCG
St Georges University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Sutton CCG
Wandsworth CCG
West Kent CCG
Guys and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust
Kings College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust
NHS England
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS Blood and Transplant
National health Service Pension Scheme
Entities are included based on the following criteria:
CCG where a formal service level agreement was in
place during the year
NHS, Government Department or Local Authority
where the transaction exceeds £250K
Transaction with an entity identified in the Trust
Registers of Interest exceeds £25K
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The members of the Trust Board are also Trustees of
the Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust Charitable Fund
(registered Charity No. 1050522). The Charity’s objectives
are to provide support both generally and in certain areas
of the Trust’s activities. During the last two years the
Charity contributed the following amounts:
Related party transactions
2015-16
Patient education and welfare

2014-15

£s

£s

174,038

97,162

Staff education and welfare

39,584

20,614

New equipment

327,261

148,718

Governance

43,813

3,833

584,696

270,327

31. Losses and special payments

The total number of losses cases in 2015-16 and their total
value was as follows:			
Losses and special payments
Total Value
of Cases

Total Number
of Cases

£s
Losses
Special payments
Total losses and special payments

887,032

6,744

75,123

53

962,155

6,797

The total number of losses cases in 2014-15 and their total
value was as follows:
Losses and special payments
Total Value
of Cases

Total Number
of Cases

£s
Losses
Special payments
Total losses and special payments

1,167,125

5,665

33,277

70

1,200,402

5,735

Details of cases individually over £300,000
There were no individual cases over £300K.
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32. Financial performance targets

The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set
for those years.
32.1. Breakeven performance
Breakeven performance
2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

172,464

171,106

174,246

188,109

222,366

229,184

241,470

382,097

517,522

518,947

2,042

3,771

(3,929)

(1,156)

(347)

44

(7,010)

74,377

(20,750)

(36,746)

Pre FDL(97)24 agreements

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07)

-

2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98
to 2007/08)

-

4,230

6,372

-

-

7,163

4,933

3,216

1,853

-

23

(6)

95

90

1,574

3,059

8,957

11,936

-

Turnover
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

2015-16

Adjustment for:
Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:

-

Adjustments for impairments
Adjustments for impact of policy change re
donated/government grants assets
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance adjustment for dual accounting under
IFRIC12*

1,537

1,405

1,383

Absorption accounting adjustment

-

(82,121)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,042

3,771

301

6,753

1,058

1,427

1,750

242

(8,482)

(22,867)

(13,409)

(9,638)

(9,337)

(2,584)

(1,526)

(99)

1,651

1,893

(6,589)

(29,456)

Other agreed adjustments
Break-even in-year position
Break-even cumulative position

* Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS Trust’s financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance
issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would
include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance. Other adjustments are made in
respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

Breakeven performance
Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):

Break-even in-year position as a
percentage of turnover
Break-even cumulative position as a
percentage of turnover

2006-07

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

2015-16
%

1.18

2.20

0.17

3.59

0.48

0.62

0.72

0.06

-1.64

-4.41

-7.77

-5.63

-5.36

-1.37

-0.69

-0.04

0.68

0.50

-1.27

-5.68

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to
IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.
32.2. Capital cost absorption rate
The dividend payable on public dividend capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast) average relevant net
assets based on the pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.
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32.3. External financing
External financing
2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

External financing limit (EFL)

25,267

26,255

Cash flow financing

25,203

21,541

Finance leases taken out in the year

-

-

Other capital receipts

-

-

25,203

21,541

64

4,714

External financing requirement
Under/(over) spend against EFL

32.4. Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not
permitted to exceed.
Capital resource limit
2015-16

2014-15

£000s

£000s

15,880

23,285

Less: book value of assets disposed of

-

(31)

Less: capital grants

-

-

Less: donations towards the acquisition
of non-current assets

-

-

15,880

23,254

15,911

31,574

31

8,320

Gross capital expenditure

Charge against the capital resource limit
Capital resource limit
(Over)/underspend against the
capital resource limit

The underspend against CRL was due to slippage on
internally funded capital schemes.

33. Third party assets

The Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to
monies held by the Trust on behalf of patients or other
parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash
equivalents figure reported in the accounts.
Third party assets

Third party assets held by Lewisham and
Greenwich NHS Trust

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000s

£000s
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The accounts have been produced in line with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The main features of IFRS, as
compared with the previously applied UK GAAP rules, are that fixed
assets are valued at fair value; normally existing use value (EUV) or
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) in the case of most Trust assets,
assets covered by finance leases such as the Riverside (PFI) building
are shown on balance sheet and potential staff costs relating to
untaken annual leave are included in expenditure.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SoCI) records the income
and the costs incurred by the Trust during the year in the course
of running its operations. It includes cash expenditure on staff and
supplies as well as non-cash expenses such as depreciation (a charge
that reflects the consumption of assets used to deliver services).
It is the equivalent of what may be referred to as the “profit and
loss account” in the private sector. If income exceeds expenditure,
the Trust has a surplus that can be re-invested in new equipment
or services. Conversely, if expenditure exceeds income, a deficit is
incurred which the Trust will have to recover. Unrealised gains and
losses from changes in the value assets during the year which have
not yet had any cash consequences, such as those arising from the
revaluation of property, are now also summarised here as part of
Other Comprehensive Income.
The Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) provides a balance sheet
snapshot of the Trust’s financial condition at the end of the financial
year. It summarises assets held (everything the Trust owns that has
monetary value), liabilities (money owed to external parties) and
taxpayers’ equity (public funds invested in the Trust). The sum of
assets less liabilities is matched by an equal amount of taxpayers’
equity.
The Statement of Cash Flows (SoCF) summarises the amount of cash
received and paid out by the Trust during the year in the delivery of
its operational services, investment activities, capital transactions
and payment of financing cost. A surplus in the SoCI will not always
lead to an increase in cash. Similarly, a deficit would not necessarily
translate into a reduction in cash held. This is because the SoCI has
expenditure in the form depreciation which does not involve actual
cash payments, and cash flow includes payments for investments,
capital and financing cost that are not shown in the SoCI because
they are non-operational (greater than one year). The impact of an
organisation’s operating performance on its cash position can only
be gleaned from the SoCF and SoFP.
Revenue from patient care activities relates primarily to income for
services commissioned by CCGs. It also includes income received
for joint care arrangements with local authorities or for delayed
discharges, and income from treating overseas visitors from
countries where there is no reciprocal healthcare agreement in
place. Reciprocal arrangements exist with most European countries
- meaning healthcare is delivered free to patients and costs funded
by the Department of Health via CCGs. The NHS Injury Costs Recovery
Scheme enables trusts to recover the cost of treating patients injured
in a road traffic accident by charging a standard fee for an accident
and emergency attendance or claiming actual costs (up to a set limit),
through the private insurance system, if inpatient care
was provided.
Other Operating Income includes education, training and research
funding, income from non-patient care services to other bodies, and
rental income from other NHS and Non NHS bodies that use Trust
property to deliver patient care related services. Funds to cover
the costs of providing education and training come from Medical
and Professional Education and Training (MPET) levies. The levies
comprise Service Increment for Teaching undergraduate medical
students (SIFT), Medical and Dental Education Levy for postgraduate
medical training (MADEL) and Non-Medical Education and Training for
nursing and other professional staff training (NMET). These funds are
generally allocated by the Department of Health via Health Education
England (HEE). Organisations undertaking research can also receive
funding through a research and development levy.
Non patient care services to other bodies - examples include laundry
and pathology.
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Income Generation is income from non-patient care activities such
as car parking, pharmacy and accommodation charges.
Other Income covers income not reported in the categories above
and include Riverside PFI support.
Operating Expenses:
Establishment includes items such as printing, postage, telephone,
advertising and travel expenses.
Transport includes vehicle insurance, fuel and oil, maintenance
equipment and hire of transport.
Premises include all the trust’s utility costs, furniture and
other property related revenue expenditure such as rates, rent
and insurance.
Provision for impairment of receivables is the amount of outstanding
Non NHS debt charged to expenditure on the basis that it is unlikely
to be recovered. These debts are pursued and only written-off after
they are 3 years old.
Depreciation is an accounting charge recognising that capital assets
are ‘consumed’ over their useful lives. For instance, IT equipment may
be depreciated over 5 years on a straight line basis, meaning one fifth
the purchase cost is assigned to each of the 5 years of the assumed
asset life.
Impairments of property, plant and equipment is where the net book
value of an asset is charged to expenditure due to the consumption
of economic benefit in full or a reduction in value not matched a
positive revaluation reserve balance. The Department of Health
excludes the impact of impairments from a trust’s breakeven duty.
Clinical Negligence is the annual premium payment to the NHS
Litigation Authority (NHSLA) as part of the Clinical Negligence Scheme
for Trusts. Premium levels are influenced by a range of factors,
including the type of trust, the specialties it provides and the number
of clinical staff it employs. Discounts are available to those trusts that
achieve the relevant NHSLA risk management standards and to those
with a good claims history.
Employee Benefits - are the total employment costs. These are
analysed into:
1. ‘Employee benefits excluding board members’. This includes
employer’s national insurance, pension contributions, early
retirement, termination and agency staff costs.
2. ‘Directors’ costs’. This is the total paid to Executive including
employer’s national insurance and employer’s pension costs.
Revaluation – Existing Use Value for non-specialised properties is
the estimated amount for which an asset or liability should exchange
on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller
in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing and where
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion – assuming that the buyer is granted vacant possession
of all parts of the asset required by the business, and disregarding
any potential alternative uses and any other characteristics of the
asset that would cause its market value to differ from that needed to
replace the remaining service potential at least cost.
Revaluation – Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) is the current
cost of replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset less
deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimisation.
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